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THONG BAO MOI HQP
PAI HOI PONG CO PONG THUONG NIEN NAM 2025

NOTICE OF INVITATION
THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Kinh giri: Quy cb dong Cong ty Cb phin Dwge Vit tw Y té Hii Duwong
To: Shareholders of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock Company

Hoi déng quan tri Cong ty Cb phéan Dugc Vattr'Y té Hai Duong tran trong thong bao va kinh moi
Quy ¢ dong dén tham dy hop Pai hoi ddng cb déng thudong nién nam 2025. Thong tin cu thé nhur sau:
The Board of Directors of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock Company
respectfully announces and invites shareholders to attend the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders. Specific information is as follows:
1. Thoi gian: 08 gio 00 phit, ngay 03/04/2025.
Time: 08:00, April 3, 2025.
2. Pia diém tb chirc dai hdi: Trung tAim t6 chite su kién Au Co (s 1A, ph6 Nguyén Hiru Ciu, phuayég ( DUGC\
Ngoc Chau, thanh phé Hai Duong, tinh Hai Duong) g
Meeting venue: Au Co Event Center (No. 14, Nguyen Huu Cau Street, Ngoc Chau Ward, Hai Duong % @
City, Hai Duong Province) N
3. Hinh thirc hop: Pai hi truc tiép. k=
Meeting format: In person.
4. Thanh phan tham du: TAt ca cc cb dong s& hitu ¢d phin ciia Cong ty C5 phan Dugc Vit tw Y té
Hai Duong c6 tén trong danh sich c¢b dong chét ngay 28/02/2025 do Téng cong ty Luu ky va Bu trir
Chimg khoan Viét Nam c4p hodc nhimg ngudi duge ty quyén tham du hop 18.
Participants: All shareholders owning shares of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint
Stock Company whose names are on the list of shareholders closed on February 28, 2025, issued by
Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation or those duly authorized to attend.

5. Tai liéu hop: Toan bd tai liéu hop va chi tiét cdc ndi dung ctia Pai hdi dugc ding tai trén website cia
Cong ty theo dudng din https://hdpharma.vn/tin-cho-nha-dau-tu/ ké tir ngay 12/03/2025.

Meeting documents: All meeting documents and details of the General Meeting are posted on the

Company's website at https://hdpharma.vn/tin-cho-nha-dau-tw/ from March 12, 2025.

6. Luu y / Note:

— Cb dong khong truc tiép tham dur c6 thé ity quyén bang vin ban (theo miu dinh kém). M3i c6 dong
chi dugc uy quyén mot (01) 14n, ngudi duge ty quyén khong dugc uy quyén lai cho nguoi khéc.
Shareholders who cannot attend in person can authorize in writing (following the attached form).
Each shareholder can only authorize once (01), the authorized person cannot authorize to another
person.

— Cb dong hozic Bén nhan tiy quyén dén du Dai hoi vui 10ng mang theo Thong bédo mdi hop, CCCD/HS
chiéu hop 1¢, Gidy ity quyén tham du Pai hoi (trudng hop nhén ay quyén tham du Dai hdi) va céc
gidy t&r lién quan khéac (néu co).

Shareholders or authorized parties attending the General Meeting are requested to bring the
Meeting Invitation, valid ID card/Passport, Authorization Letter to attend the General Meeting (in
case of receiving authorization 1o attend the General Meeting) and other relevant documents (if

any).
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— Moi chi phi di lai, &n & va céc chi phi khac trong thoi gian du hop Dai hdi do ngudi tham du tu chi
tra.
All travel, accommodation and other expenses during the meeting are paid by the attendees.
7. Théng tin lién hé / Contact information:
Pé cong tic tlep d6n duoc chu déo, dé nghi Quy cb dong guri Gidy uy quyen va céc y kién déng
gbép/chu hoi vé Cong ty chdm nhét trude 17 gio 00 phit, ngay 28/03/2025 bang mot trong cac hinh
thire sau:
To ensure a thoughtful reception, we request that shareholders send their Authorization Letter and
comments/questions to the Company no later than 5:00 p.m. on March 28, 2025 in one of the
following forms:
— Qua dudng buu dién theo dia chi / By post to the address:
Phong Té chirc Hanh chinh — Cong ty C4 phin Duoc V4t tu Y té Hai Duong
S 102 phd Chi Lang, phudng Nguyén Trdi, TP. Hai Duong, tinh Hai Duong
Dién thoai: 0220.384733
Administrative Organization Department - Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint
Stock Company
No. 102 Chi Lang Street, Nguyen Trai Ward, Hai Duong City, Hai Duong Province
Tel: 0220.384733
— Qua dia chi email: info@hdpharma.vn
Via email: znfo@hdpharma vn
R4t han hanh duoc dén tiép Quy Cb dong du Dai hoi ddng cb dong thudng nién 2025 cia Cong ty!
We are pleased to welcome shareholders to the Company's 2025 Annual General Meeting of~
Shareholders! _\-\;;\\
Hai Duwong, ngay 07 thdang 03 ndm 2025 s o
Hai Duong, March 07, 2025 TT
TM. HOI PONG QUAN TRI M Y
CHU TICH 4
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
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CHUONG TRINH HOP
PAI HOI PONG CO PONG THUONG NIEN NAM 2025

MEETING AGENDA
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025

1. Thoi gian: 08 gio 00 phut, ngay 03/04/2025.
Time: 8 am, April, 3™, 2025

2. Pia diém td chirc Pai hdi: Trung tim t6 chirc sw kién Au Co (s6 1A, phé Nguyén Hiru
CAu, phuong Ngoc Chau, thanh phé Hai Dwong, tinh Hai Dwong
Venue of the General Meeting: Au Co Event Center (No. 14, Nguyen Huu Cau Street, Ngoc
Chau Ward, Hai Duong City, Hai Duong Province)

Thoi gian Noi dung Phu trach
Time Content In charge
7h00 — 8h00 | L. Trwée khi khai mac Dai héi Ban kiém tra tur
Before the Opening of the General Meeting cach dai biéu
Dén tiép dai bidu Delegate
Welcoming Delegates Eligibility
Dang ky tham du Pai hoi va phat tai liéu hop Verification
Registration for Attendance and Distribution of Meeting Committee
Documents
8h00 — 8h30 | II. Khai mac Dai hdi
Opening of the General Meeting
Tuyén b Iy do, giéi thiéu dai biéu ]?;n o
Statement of Purpose and Introduction of Delegates rgamjzmg
Committee

Bio cdo két qua kiém tra tu c4ch dai biéu tham du Pai hoi

Ban kiém tra tu
cach dai biéu

Delegat,
Report on the Verification of Delegate Eligibility for the .'e e:’g.a’e
. Eligibility
General Meeting : i
Verification
Committee
Gi6i thiéu Poan chu tich, Ban thu ky, Ban kiéu phiéu Poan Chu toa
Introduction of the Presidium, Secretariat, and Vote Presidium
Counting Committee
Thong qua Poan chit toa, Ban kiém phiéu, Chwong trinh hop, | Ban kiém phiéu
Quy ché t6 chirc va biéu quyét Vote Counting
Approval of the Presidium, Vote Counting Commiltee, Committee

Meeting Agenda, Organizational Regulations, and Voting
Procedures
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Proceedings of the General Meeting

Thoi gian Ngi dung Phu trach
Time Content In charge
8h30 — 11h00 | IIL Tién trinh cia Dai hoi

Trinh bay cdc Bdo cdo:

- B4o céo hoat ddng San xuét kinh doanh nam 2024, ké hoach
nam 2025

- Béo cdo hoat dong cua Hoi dé"mg quan tri ndm 2024 va ké
hoach nhimg nam tiép theo

- Bdo céo hoat dong ctuia Ban Kiém so4t nam 2024.

Presentation of Reports:

- Report on Business Operations for 2024 and Plan for 2025
- Report on the Activities of the Board of Directors in 2024
and Plans for the Coming Years

- Report on the Activities of the Supervisory Board in 2024

Poan chu toa
Presidium

- Trinh bay céc T& trinh
- Mt sé ndi dung khéac thudce thim quyén cia PHDCD

- Presentation of Proposals
- Other Matters Within the Authority of the General Meeting

of Shareholders

Poan chi toa
Presidium

Pai hoi thao luin vé cac Bao cdo va To trinh
Discussion on Reports and Proposals

Poan chu toa
Presidium

Hu6ng dan biéu quyét
Dai hoi tién hanh biéu quyét

Ban kiém phiéu
Vote Counting

Committee
Voting instructions
Conducting the Voting Process
Tiéc tra nghi giai lao Ban kiém phiéu
Kiém phiéu biéu quyét Vote Counting
Tea Break Committee
Vote Counting
Cong bb két qua kiém phiéu biéu quyét Batlicm pl?leu
Announcement of Voting Resulls s Cozfntmg
Committee
11h00 — 11h30 | IV. Thi tuc bé mac PHDPCP thuong nién nim 2025
Procedures for Closing the 2025 Annual General Meeting
Doc Bién ban hop va du thao Nghi quyét PHDCD thuong | Ban thu ky
nién nam 2025 Secretariat
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- Thoi gian
 Time

Noi dung _ Phu trach
Content : In charge

Readfng of the Meeting Minutes and Draft Resolution of the
2025 Annual General Meeting

Théng qua Bién ban va Nghi quyét PHPCD thudng nién ndm | Ban kiém phiéu
2025 Vote Counting
Approval of the Meeting Minutes and Resolution of the 2025 Committee

Annual General Meeting

L o § o2 oy Ban t6 chirc
Tong két va tuyén bo bé mac Dai hdi P
" 4 anizirn
Conclusion and Declaration of the Meeting's Closure = ) &
Committee

TM. BAN TO CHUC PAI HOI
CHU TICH
ON BEHALF OF
THE ORGANIZING COMMITTEE OF
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DUQC VAT TU Y TE HAI DUONG SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
HAI DUONG PHARMACEUTICAL & Doc lap - Tw do - Hanh phic
MEDICAL JSC. Independence — Liberty — Happiness

QUY CHE TO CHU'C VA BIEU QUYET
TAI DPAI HOI PONG CO PONG THUONG NIEN NAM 2025

STATUTE ON ORGANIZING AND VOTING AT THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Cin cir / According to:

- Ludt doanh nghiép sé 59/2020/QH14 dwoc Quéc hoi nude Cong hoa Xa hoi Chii nghia

Viét Nam thoéng qua ngay 17/06/2020, swa déi bé sung boi Ludt s6 ' 03/2020 durge Quoc
héi nueée Cong hoa Xa hoi Chu nghia Viét Nam théng qua ngay 11/01/2022 va cdc van
ban hurémg dan thi hanh;
Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020, amended and supplemented by Law No.
03/2020 passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on
January 11, 2022 and documents guiding its implementation;

- Ludt Chitng khodn s6 59/2019/QH14 duoc Quédc héi nueée Cong hoa Xa hoi Chii nghia
Viét Nam thong qua ngay 26/11/2019, c6 hiéu lyc thi hanh tir ngay 01/01/2021;
Securities Law No. 59/2019/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019, effective from January 1, 2021;

- Diéulé t6 chirc va hoat dong cua Cong ty Cé phan Dugce Vit tw Y té Hdi Durong.
Charter of organization and operation of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical

Materials Joint Stock Company.

Chwong I
NHUNG QUY PINH CHUNG

Chapter 1
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Diéu 1. Pham vi va d6i twong ap dung

Article 1. Scope and subjects of application

1. Quy ché nay dugc ap dung cho viéc td chirc cudc hop Dai hoi dfﬁng co dong thuong
nién nam 2025 cia Cong ty Co phén Dugc Vit tu Y té Hai Duong.
These provisions apply to the organization of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical and Medical Supplies Joint Stock
Company.

2. Quy ché nay quy dinh cu thé didu kién tb chic Dai hoi, quyé“:n va nghia vu ctia cac bén
tham gia Dai hoi va thé thirc tién hanh Dai hoi.



These provisions specifically stipulate the conditions for organizing the meeting, the
rights and obligations of the parties participating in the meeting and the procedures
for conducting the meeting.

3. Cb dong va cac bén tham gia Dai hdi c6 trach nhiém thyuc hién theo cac quy dinh tai

Quy ché nay.
Shareholders and parties participating in the General Meeting are responsible for
complying with the provisions of this statute.

Piéu 2. Giai thich tir ngit

Article 2. Terminologies.

2.1 “Cong ty” hodc “DHD” 1a Cong ty Cb phan Dugc Vat tr Y té Hai Duong.
“Company” or “DHD?” is Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock
Company.

2.2 “DPHDCD” hodc “Dai h$i” 1a Dai hdi dong cb dong thudong nién nam 2025 cia Cong
ty C6 phan Dugc Vit tu Y t& Hai Duong.

“GMS” or “Meeting” indicates the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical and Medical Supplies Joint Stock Company.

2.3 “Ngwoi dai dign theo tiy quyén ciia cé déng” 13 ngudi duge ¢b dong ty quyén hop
1€ b%mg vin ban dé tham du va thuc hién cac quyén hop phap cua cb dong tai cudc
hop Dai hi dong ¢6 dong thuong nién nam 2025 phit hop véi quy dinh ciia phap luat
va Diéu 1é Cong ty.

“Authorized representative of the shareholder” is a person who is validly authorized
in writing by the shareholder to attend and exercise the legal rights of the shareholder

at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with the
provisions of law and the Company's Charter.

2.4 “Dgi biéu” 1a cb dong va ngudi dai dién theo liy quyén (hop 18) cua cb dong tham du
cudc hop Dai hoi dong ¢ dong thudng nién ndm 2025 cua Cong ty C6 phin Dugc
Vit tu Y té Hai Duong.
“Delegate” means a shareholder and a (valid) authorized representative attending
the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical and
Medical Supplies Joint Stock Company.

Didu 3. Piéu kién tham dv Dai hji

Article 3. Conditions for attending the Meeting

Tt ca cac cb dong s& hitu ¢d phiéu ctia Cong ty c6 tén trong danh séch ¢ déng chét tai

ngay 28/02/2025 do Téng cong ty Luu ky va Bu trir Chitng khoan Viét Nam cung cip hoic

nhitng ngudi dugc ¢d dong uy quyén tham du déu c6 quyén tham du Pai hdi ddng cd dong

thudng nién ndm 2025 cta Cong ty.



All shareholders owning shares of the Company whose names are on the list of
shareholders as of February 28, 2025 provided by the Vietnam Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation or those authorized by shareholders to attend are entitled to attend

the Company's 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

Pidu 4. Quy dinh vé ity quyén tham dy Dai hdi

Article 4. Regulations on authorization to aitend the Meeting

Viéc uy quyé“:n cho ngudi khac tham du Pai hoi phai 1ap thanh vin ban va dam bao tuan
thit theo quy dinh ciia Luat doanh nghiép, Diéu 15 Diéu 1¢ Cong ty va cac quy dinh tai Quy
ché nay. Cu thé nhu sau:

Authorization for others to attend the General Meeting must be made in writing and must
comply with the provisions of the Enterprise Law, Article 15 of the Company Charter and
the provisions of this Statute, specifically as follows:

1. Céc cd dong c6 quyén tham du cudc hop Pai hoi ddng cb dong theo quy dinh cua

phép Iuét c6 thé ty quyén cho c4 nhan, t chirc dai dién tham dy. Trudng hop c6
nhidu hon mét ngudi dai dién theo ty quyén thi phai xac dinh cu thé s6 6 phan
duge iy quyén cho mdi ngudi dai dién. Néu cb dong khong xac dinh s6 Iugng cb
phén ty quyén cho timg ngudi dai dién theo iy quyén thi s6 ¢b phén s& dugc chia
déu cho tt ca nguoi dai dién theo uy quyén.
Shareholders who are entitled to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders as
prescribed by law may authorize individuals or organizations to attend on their
behalf In case there is more than one authorized representative, the number of
shares authorized for each representative must be specifically determined. If the
shareholder does not determine the number of shares authorized for each
representative, the number of shares will be divided equally among all authorized
persons.

2. Viée iy quyén cho c4 nhan, t chirc dai dién du hop Dai hoi ddng 6 dong phai lap
thanh vin ban. Vin ban ty quyén dugc lap theo quy dinh ctia phap luat vé dan su
va phai néu 16 tén ca nhén, t6 chitc duoc iy quyén va sb luong cb phan dugc Gy
quyén va phai c6 chit ky theo quy dinh sau day:

The authorization for an individual or organization to represent them in attending
the General Meeting of Shareholders must be made in writing. The authorization
document must be made in accordance with the provisions of civil law and must
clearly state the name of the authorized individual or organization, the number of
authorized shares and must be signed in accordance with the following provisions:
a. Trudong hop cb dong c4 nhan 12 ngudi ty quyén thi gidy ty quyén phai c6 chir

ky ciia ¢6 dong d6 va ca nhan hoac ngudi dai dién theo phap luét cia t chirc ty

quyén dy hop;



If the shareholder is an individual, the authorization letter must be signed by
that shareholder and the individual or legal representative of the organization
authorizing the meeting;

b. Truong hop ¢ dong t6 chirc 12 ngudi tiy quyén thi gidy uy quyén phai c6 chir

ky clia nguoi dai dién theo Gy quyén, ngudi dai dién theo phép luat ciia c6 dong
t6 chirc va c4 nhan, ngudi dai dién theo phép ludt cua td chirc duoc iy quyén du
hop;
If the shareholder is an organization, the authorization letter must be signed by
the authorized representative, the legal representative of the institutional and
individual shareholder, the legal representative of the organization authorized
to attend the meeting;

c. Trong trudmg hop khéc thi gidy iy quyén phai c6 chit ky cua nguoi dai dién theo
phép luét ciia cb dong va ngudi duge Gy quyén du hop.

In other cases, the authorization letter must be signed by the legal representative
of the shareholder and the person authorized to attend the meeting.

Ngudi duge iy quyén du hop Pai hdi déng cb déng phai ndp vin ban ty quyén
khi dang ky du hop truée khi vao phong hop.

The person authorized to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders must
submit the authorization document when registering to attend the meeting before
entering the meeting room.

3. Trudng hop luét su thay mit cho ngudi ty quyén ky gidy chi dinh cho c4 nhan, tb
chtrc, viéc chi dinh c4 nhén, t6 chirc trong trudng hop nay chi duge coi 1a ¢6 hiéu
Ire néu gidy chi dinh c4 nhan, t6 chirc d6 dugc xuit trinh cling véi gidy uy quyén
cho luét su (néu trude d6 chua ding ky véi Cong ty)

In case a lawyer signs a letter of nomination on behalf of the shadeholder to

nominate an individual or organization as a representative, the appointment of the

individual or organization in this case shall only be considered valid if the letter of
nomination of that individual or organization is presented together with the letter
of authorization for the lawyer (if not previously registered with the Company).

4. Trir trudng hop quy dinh tai khoan 3 Diéu nay, phiéu biéu quyét cia ngudi duge ty
quyén du hop trong pham vi dugc iy quyén van c6 hiéu luc khi xay ra mot trong
cac truong hop sau day:

Except for the case specified in Clause 3 of this Article, the voting ballot of the

person authorized to attend the meeting remains valid within the scope of

authorization when one of the followings occurs:

a. Ngudi uy quyén da chét, bi han ché nang luc hanh vi dan su hodc bi mat nang
luc hanh vi dan su;



The authorizing party is deceased, has limited capacity for civil conducts or has
lost capacity for civil conducts;
b. Ngudi ty quyén da hiy bé viéc chi dinh iy quyén;
The authorizing party has revoked the authorization;
c. Ngudi iy quyén da hiy bo thAm quyén ctia ngudi thuce hién vige Gy quyén
The authorizing party has revoked the authority of the person performing the
authorization
Piéu khoan nay khong 4p dung trong trudng hop Céng ty nhan duoc thong bao vé
mot trong céc su kién trén trude gid khai mai cude hop Dai hoi dong cb doéng hoic
trude khi cude hop duge triu tép lai.
This provision shall not apply in the event that the Company receives notice of one
of the above before the opening time of the General Meeting of Shareholders or
before the meeting is reconvened.

5. Hiy bo ty quyén déi véi cb dong da duoc phé duyét iy quyén: Co dong g van

ban chinh thitc d& nghi hity tiy quyén cho Cong ty trudc lic Dai hoi khai mac chinh
thirc. Thosi gian ghi nhén viéc hily ty quyén 6 hiéu luc ké tir khi Céng ty nhan dugc
van ban chinh thic d& nghi hiy dy quyén.
Cancellation of authorization for shareholders whose authorization has been
approved: Shareholders will send an official document requesting fo cancel the
authorization to the Company before the official opening of the General Meeting.
The cancellation becomes effective from the time the Company receives this official
request.

6. Viéc hily bo iy quyén s& khong c6 hiéu luc néu ngudi dai dién theo ty quyén da
hoan thanh thu tuc dang ky du hop véi Ban td chire tai ngay td chirc Pai hoi hodc
da bé phiéu biéu quyét véi bat ky ndi dung nao trong Chuong trinh hop cua Dai hoi
The cancellation of authorization will not be effective if the authorized
representative has completed the registration procedure for attending the meeting
with the Organizing Committee on the date of the General Meeting or has voted on
any content in the Agenda of the General Meeting.

Chuwong 11
QUYEN VA NGHIA VU CUA CAC BEN THAM DU DAI HOI

Chapter I
RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF PARTIES ATTENDING THE MEETING

Piéu 5. Quyén va nghia vu cia cic dai biéu tham dw Pai hgi

Article 5. Rights and obligations of delegates attending the General Meeting

1. Quyén ciia cdc dai biéu tham duw Dai hji/ Rights of delegates attending the Meeting
5



—  Duogc quyén tham du Pai hoi.
Right to attend the Meeting.

—  Pugc Ban t6 chuc Dai hdi thong bdo ndi dung, chuong trinh hop tai Pai hoi.
Be informed by the Organizing Committee of the meeting content and agenda.

—  Dugc théo luéin va biéu quyét tit ca cac van dé thudc thim quyén cta Dai hoi theo quy
dinh ciia Ludt Doanh nghiép va Diéu 1é Cong ty.

Discuss and vote on all matters within the authority of the General Meeting as
prescribed by the Law on Enterprises and the Company Charter.

— Pai biéu tham du DPai hdi muédn van cé quyén dang ky tham dy Dai hoi va tham gia

biéu quyét cac van dé, noi dung tiép theo cua Dai héi. Chu toa khoéng ¢6 trach nhiém
dimg va biéu quyét lai cac vén dé da thong qua, hiéu luc cia cac vén dé biéu quyét
trude do s€ khong bi anh hudng.
Delegates late to the Meeting still have the right to register to attend the Meeting and
participate in voting on the following issues and contents. The Chairman is not
responsible for stopping and re-voting on issues that have been passed, the validity of
previously voted issues will not be affected.

2. Nghia vu ciia cdc dai biéu khi tham duw Pai hji / Obligations of delegates when
attending the Meeting

— Dai biéu dén tham dy Dai hdi phai hoan thanh céc thi tuc dang ky v6i Ban t chirc Dai

hoi va xuit trinh céc gidy t& sau: Thong bao méi hop, Gidy ching minh nhan d4n/Cin
cude cong dan/Ho chiéu hodc ban sao chimg thuc Gidy chimg nhan ding ky doanh
nghiép, Gidy tiy quyén hop 1€ (néu c6)
Delegates attending the Meeting must complete the registration procedures with the
Organizing Committee and present the following documents: Meeting invitation, ID
card/Passport or certified copy of Business registration certificate, Valid authorization
letter (if any)

— Tuén thi ding theo cac quy dinh cia Luat Doanh nghiép, Piéu 1é Cong ty va Quy ché
nay; Tén trong két qua 1am viéc tai Pai hoi; Phat biéu dudi su diéu hanh ciia Chit toa
Dai hoi va biéu quyét theo huéng din ciia Ban t& chirc Pai hoi; Viéc ghi 4m, ghi hinh
Dai héi phai dugc thong bao cong khai va duge su ché‘ip thudn ctua Chi toa Pai hoi. Tu
tiic vé c4c chi phi dé tham du Dai hoi (nhu phuong tién di lai, an udng, nghi ngoi...)
Comply with the provisions of the Enterprise Law, the Company Charter and this
Statute; Respect the results at the Meeting; Speak under the direction of the Meeting
Chairman and vote according to the instructions of the Organizing Committee; The
recording and filming of the Meeting must be informed and approved by the Meeting
Chairman. Attendees are expected to pay for their own expenses (transportation, food,
accommodation, etc.) during the Meeting.

Diéu 6. Quyen va nghia vu ciia Ban kiém tra tw cach dai biéu
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Article 6. Rights and obligations of the Delegate Examination Board
Ban kiém tra tur c4ch dai biéu do Hoi ddng quan tri Cong ty chi dinh va thuc hién cac nhiém

vu sau:
The Delegate Examination Board is appointed by the Company's Board of Directors to
perform the following tasks:

Kiém tra tu cach Dai biéu tham du Pai hoi; Kiém tra Cin cudc cong dan/Ho chiéu,
Thong bdo moi hop.

Ensure delegates are eligible to attend the Meeting; Check ID/Passport and Meeting
invitation.

Kiém tra tinh hop 1€ va hop phép ctia Gidy ty quyén cia cb dong.

Check the validity and legality of the shareholder's authorization letter.

Bio cdo truéc Dai hoi vé két qua kiém tra tu cach Dai biéu tham dyu Dai hdi.

Report on the results of the examination at the Meeting.

Piéu 7. Quyén va nghia vu ciia Chi toa Dai hoi

Article 7. Rights and obligations of the Meeting Chairman

1:

Chti toa Pai hoi 1a Chii tich HDQT Céng ty, Chii toa c6 nhi€ém vu diéu khién Pai hoi.
Truong hop Chu tich vang mit hodc tam thoi mét kha ning 1am viéc thi céc thanh vién
Hoi dfjng quan tri con lai bau mot ngudi trong sb ho 1am chi toa cudc hop theo nguyén
tic da sb. Truong hop khong bau dugc ngudi lam chi toa, Trudng hop khong c6 ngudi
¢6 thé 1am chil toa, thanh vién Hoi dong quan tri chirc vu cao nhét diéu khién dé Dai
hoi df’ing cd dong bau Chu toa cudc hop trong s6 nhitng ngudi du hop va nguoi c6
phiéu bau cao nhét lam chi toa cudc hop.

The Chairman for the General Meeting is the Chairman of the Board of Directors of
the Company. The Chairman is responsible for presiding over the General Meeting. In
case the Chairman is absent or temporarily unable to work, the remaining members of
the Board of Directors shall elect another to chair the meeting according to the
majority vote. If no one can be elected as the Chairman, the member of the Board of
Directors with the highest position shall preside over the election of the Chairman
from among the attendees of the General Meeting, and the person with the highest
number of votes shall chair the meeting.

Quyét dinh cia Chi toa v& van dé trinh tu, tha tuc hodc cac su kién phat sinh ngoai
chuong trinh hop Pai hoi s€ mang tinh phan quyét cao nhat.

The Chairman's decision on matters of order, procedure or events arising outside the
agenda of the General Meeting shall be final.

Piéu khién Dai héi theo ding ndi dung chuong trinh hop, céc thé 1& quy ché da duogc
Dai hoi thong qua. Chu toa co quyén khong tra 161 hodc chi ghi nhén cac y kién déng
g6p ciia cb dong néu céc ndi dung d6 ndm ngoai ndi dung xin ¥ kién Pai hoi.



Conduct the General Meeting in accordance with the agenda and statute approved by
the General Meeting. The Chairman has the right not to respond or only acknowledge
shareholders' comments if such content is outside the scope of the General Meeting.

4. Huéng din Dai hdi thao ludn, ldy y kién biéu quyét cac van dé nim trong ndi dung
chuong trinh hop cta Dai hoi va cac van dé c6 lién quan trong sut qué trinh Dai hbi.
Guide the Congress to discuss and vote on issues within the Meeting agenda and
related issues.

5. Bét cir luc ndo, Chu toa ciing ¢6 quyén thuc hién cac bién phép can thiét d& didu khién

cudc hop mdt cach hop ly, co trat tu, ding theo chuong trinh d3 duoc thong qua va
phan anh dugc mong mudn cia da sé ngudi du hop, cu thé nhu sau:
At any time, the Chairman has the right to take necessary measures to control the
meeting in a reasonable, orderly manner, in accordance with the approved agenda
and reflecting the wishes of the majority of the meeting attendees, specifically as
follows:

—  Yéu cu tit ca Pai biéu tham du cudc hop PHDCD chiu su kiém tra hodc céc
bién phap an ninh khéc.

Require all delegates attending the General Meeting of Shareholders to be
subject to inspection or other security measures.

—  Yéu ciu co quan c6 thim quyén duy tri trit tu cudc hop; truc xuét nhimg ngudi

tham dy Dai hoi khong tuan thii quyén diéu hanh cta Chi toa, ¢b y gly r6i trat
tw, ngan can tién trién binh thudng cta cudce hop hodc khéng tuén thi cac yéu ciu
vé kiém tra an ninh tai Dai héi.
Request competent authorities to maintain order at the meeting; expel those who
do not comply with the Chairman's authority, intentionally disrupt order, prevent
the normal progress of the meeting or do not comply with security check
requirements at the meeting.

6. Chu toa c6 quyén hoan cudc hop Pai hoi dong cb dong da c6 du sé ngudi ding ky
du hop theo quy dinh dén mét thdi diém khac hodc thay déi dia diém hop trong céac
truong hop sau:

The Chairman has the right to postpone the General Meeting of Shareholders with a
sufficient number of registered attendees to another time or change the meeting
location in the following cases:

a. Dia diém hop khong c6 dii chd ngdi thuan tién cho tAt ca ngudi du hop;
The meeting location does not have enough convenient seating for all attendees;
b. Phuong tién thong tin tai dia diém hop khong bao dam cho cé dong du hop tham
gia, thao luan va biéu quyét;
The media at the meeting location does not ensure that shareholders attending the
meeting can participate, discuss and vote;
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7.

c. Co6ngudidu hop can trd, gay roi trat tu, 6 nguy co lam cho cudc hop khong duoc
tién hanh mot céch cong bing va hop phap;Thi gian hoan t6i da khéng qua 03
ngay ké tir ngay cudc hop du dinh khai mac.

There are attendees who obstruct or disrupt the meeting, preventing the meeting
from being conducted fairly and legally; The maximum postponement period shall
not exceed 03 days from the date the meeting is scheduled to open.

Giai quyét cac vAn d& phat sinh khac trong sut qué trinh Pai hoi.

Resolve other issues that may arise during the meeting.

Pidu 8. Quyén va nghia vu ciia Ban thw ky

Article 8. Rights and obligations of the Secretariat

Ban thu ky gdm: 01 Truéng Ban va cac thanh vién do Chu toa Dai hoi deé cir.

The Secretariat consists of> 01 Head and members nominated by the Meeting
Chairman.

Ban thu ky thuc hién cac cong viéc theo su phan cong cua Chu toa Dai hdi, bao gém:
ghi chép Bién ban Pai hoi, du thao Nghi quyét Pai hoi va thyc hién cac cong viéc khac
theo su phan cong ctia Chu toa Dai hoi.

The Secretariat performs tasks assigned by the Chairman, including but not limited to:
recording the Meeting Minutes and drafting the Meeting Resolutions.

Tiép nhén Phiéu dang ky phat biéu chét van cuia dai biéu du hop, téng hop va trinh Chu
toa Pai hoi.

Receive the registration form for inquiry from delegates attending the meeting, compile

and submit to the Chairman.

Diéu 9. Quyén va nghia vu cia Ban kiém phiéu

Article 9. Rights and obligations of the Vote Counting Committee

I

Ban kiém phiéu gdm: 01 Truéng Ban va céc thanh vién do Chu toa Dai hoi dé cir va
duoc Dai hoi biéu quyét thong qua.

The Vote Counting Committee consists of> 01 Head of the Committee and members
nominated by the Chairman and approved by the Congress.

Nhiém vu cta Ban kiém phiéu / Duties of the Vote Counting Committee:

Thuc hién kiém tra, giam sat viéc bo phiéu;

Inspect and supervise the voting procedure,

T chirc kiém phiéu, x4c dinh chinh x4c két qua biéu quyét tai Dai hoi;

Organize vote counting and accurately determine voting results at the meeting;

Lap Bién ban kiém phiéu va chiu trach nhiém truéc Poan Chu toa Dai héi khi thuc
hién nhiém vu cua minh;

Prepare the vote counting minutes and be responsible for their duties as assigned by

the Presidium;
9



— Nhanh chéng thong bao két qua kiém phiéu cho Ban thu ky;
Promptly notify the Secretariat of the voting results;

— Xem xét va bao cdo Pai hdi nhimng trudng hop vi pham thé 1é bidu quyét, bau cir hodc
don thu khiéu nai vé& két qua kiém phiéu.
Review and report to the Congress any violations of voting and election rules or
complaints about voting resullts.

Chuwong III
TIEN HANH PAI HOI
Chapter I11
HOLDING THE MEETING

Diéu 10. Diéu kién tién hanh Dai hoi

Article 10. Conditions for holding the meeting

1. Cube hop Pai hoi dong c6 dong thudng nién dugc tién hanh khi ¢6 sé Dai bidu du hop
dai dién cho it nhét 51% téng s6 cd phan c6 quyén biéu quyét.

The annual General Meeting of Shareholders is held when the number of delegates
attending the meeting represents at least 51% of the total number of voting shares.

2. Truong hop cude hop 1an thir nhét khong dii didu kién tién hanh theo quy dinh tai khoan
1 Piéu nay thi Thong béo moi hop l4n thir hai phai duoc gtri trong thoi han 30 ngay ké
tir ngay du dinh hop 14n thir nhit. Cudc hop Dai héi dong cb dong 1an thit hai dugc tién
hanh khi ¢6 s6 cb dong du hop dai dién it nhét 33% tdng s phiéu biéu quyét tré 1én.
In case the first meeting does not meet the conditions for holding it as prescribed in
Clause 1 of this Article, the Notice of invitation to the second meeting must be sent
within 30 days from the date of the first meeting. The second General Meeting of
Shareholders shall be held when the number of shareholders attending the meeting
represents at least 33% of the total number of votes or more.

3. Trudng hop cudc hop lan thir hai khong di diéu kién tién hanh theo quy dinh tai khoan

2 Diéu ny thi Théng bdo mdi hop 14n thir ba phai dugc giri trong théi han 20 ngy ké
tir ngay dy dinh hop 14n thtr hai. Cude hop Dai hdi dong cd dbng 1an th ba duge tién
hanh khong phu thudc vao téng sé phiéu biéu quyét ctia cb dong du hop.
In case the second meeting does not meet the conditions for holding it as prescribed in
Clause 2 of this Article, the Notice of invitation to the third meeting must be sent within
20 days from the date of the intended second meeting. The third General Meeting of
Shareholders shall be held regardless of the total number of votes of the shareholders
attending the meeting.

Diéu 11. Cich thirc tién hanh Dai hoi
Article 11. Method of conducting the meeting
1. Dai hoi du kién dién ra trong ' ngay hodc ca ngay.
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The meeting is expected to last for half a day or a whole day.

Pai hoi s& thong qua chuong trinh hop, tién hanh thao luan va thong qua ting ndi dung
néu tai chuong trinh hop.

The meeting will go through, discuss and approve each item stated in the meeting

agenda.

Piéu 12. Thao luin tai Pai hdi

Article 12. Discussion at the meeting

1.

Nguyén tic / Principles:

Viéc thao luan chi dugc thyc hién trong thoi gian quy dinh va thudc pham vi cac van
@& trinh bay trong ndi dung Chuong trinh hop da dugc PHDCD thong qua.
Discussions are only carried out within the prescribed time and within the scope of
issues presented in the meeting agenda approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

ai biéu tham du Pai héi ¢6 ¥ kién thao luan c6 thé dat cau héi truc tiep v6i Poan Chi
toa hodc giri cau héi cho Ban thu ky Dai hdi; Dai bidu khi can phat biéu hodc tranh
luén thi gio tay, chi khi dugc Doan Chu toa nhét tri méi dugc phat biéu; Mbi dai biéu
phét biéu khong qué 03 phit, ndi dung can ngin gon, tranh tring 13p.

Delegates attending the meeting who have opinions to discuss can ask questions
directly to the Presidium or send questions to the Secretariat; Delegates who need to
speak or debate must raise their hands, and can only speak when the Presidium agrees;
Each delegate's speech should not exceed 03 minutes, the content of which should be
concise with no repetition.

Ban thu ky s& sip xép cac cau héi cua Dai bidu theo thtr tu diang ky va chuyén 1én cho
Chu toa Dai hoi.

The Secretariat will arrange the Delegates' questions in order of registration and
forward them to the Chairman.

Dai biéu khong phét biéu lai nhitng y kién da dugc Dai biéu khac phat biéu va chi cac
y kién phét biéu phu hop véi ndi dung chuong trinh Dai hoi m&i duge ghi vao Bién
ban cudc hop.

Delegates do not repeat opinions that have been expressed by other Delegates and
only opinions that are consistent with the content of the Meeting agenda will be
recorded in the meeting minutes.

Chti toa Pai hdi c6 quyén nhéc nhé, d& nghi Dai biéu tap trung vao ndi dung trong tam
cin chét vAn hodc cit ngang phén trinh bay y kién ctia Dai biéu néu xét thay can thiét
@ tiét kiém thoi gian va dam bao chit luong chét vén.
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The Chairman has the right to remind and ask Delegates to focus on the key inquiry
or to interrupt the Delegate's presentation if deemed necessary to save time and ensure
the quality of the inquiry.

2. Gidi ddp y kién ciia cdc Pai biéu / Responding to Delegates’ inquiries

— Trén co s& Phiéu cau héi ctia Pai biéu hoic cau héi dugc Dai biéu phét biéu truc tiép,
Chi toa hogc thanh vién do Chil toa chi dinh s& giai dap y kién ctia Pai biéu.
Based on the Delegate's questionnaire or questions directly raised by the Delegate, the
Chairman or a member designated by the Chairman will answer the Delegate's
inquiry.

— Chu toa c6 quyén khong tra 1&i hodc chi ghi nhan cac ¥ kién déng gbp cia cb dong néu
cac ni dung déng gop, kién nghi nam ngoai ndi dung xin y kién Pai hdi.
The Chairman has the right not to respond or only acknowledge shareholders'

contributions if the contributions and recommendations are outside the scope of the
General Meeting's request for opinions.

—  Trudng hop do gidi han vé thoi gian tb chire, céc cau hoi chua dugc tra 10 truc tiép tai
Dai hoi s& duge Cong ty tra 10i bang vin ban.
In case of time constraints, questions that are not answered directly at the General
Meeting will be answered in writing by the Company.

—  Déi véi cac ndi dung chét vén phat sinh trong qua trinh dién ra Pai hoi, Ban thu ky ¢6
trach nhiém tdng hop, bdo cdo Chu toa dé tra 15 cd déng bing vin ban va s& duoc
dang tai cong khai trén website: https://hdpharma.vn/ ctia Cong ty.

For questions that arise during the General Meeting, the Secretariat is responsible for
summarizing and reporting to the Chairman to respond to shareholders in writing and
will be publicly posted on the Company's website: https://hdpharma.vn/.

Chwong IV
BIEU QUYET, THE LE BIEU QUYET VA
PIEU KIEN PE NGHI QUYET DPAI HQI PONG CO PONG PUQC THONG QUA
Chapter IV
VOTING, VOTING RULES AND
CONDITIONS FOR THE APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION IN THE GENERAL
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Piéu 13. Biéu quyét thong qua cac ngi dung tai Pai hoi

Article 13. Voting to approve proposals in the meeting

Tét ca cac van dé can biéu quyét trong chuong trinh hop ctia Pai hoi déu phai dugc Pai
hi déng c6 dong thao ludn va biéu quyét cong khai theo nguyén tac sau:

All issues to be voted on in the agenda of the General Meeting must be discussed and voted
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on publicly by the General Meeting of Shareholders according to the following principles:
1. Poi twong thue hién biéu quyet | Eligible voters
Co dong s& hitu c¢b phan c6 quyén bidu quyét theo danh sach cb dong chét tai ngay
28/02/2025 do Téng cong ty Luu ky va Bu tru Chung khoan Viét Nam cung cép va
nhitng ngudi dai dién theo Uy quyén hop 1€ cta cd dong tham du hop PHDCD.
Shareholders owning shares with voting rights according to the list of shareholders as
of February 28, 2025 provided by the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation and the shareholders' duly authorized representatives attending the
General Meeting of Shareholders.
2. Hinh thirc bidu quyét / Voting format
_ Pai héi tién hanh biéu quyét cac vén d& trong Chuong trinh hop béng mot trong hai
hinh thirc d6 la:
The Congress shall vote on issues in the Agenda in one of two ways:
=  Gio Thé biéu quyét
Raise the voting card
= Nop Phiéu biéu quyét
Submit voting form
_  Theo d6, mdi Dai biéu dén tham du Pai hoi s& dugc Ban t0 chirc Dai hdi phat:
Accordingly, each Delegate attending the meeting will be given by the Organizing
Committee:
= Mot (01) “Thé bidu quyét” c6 ghi ma Dai biu, s6 cb phan s¢ hitu va/hozc dai
dién, c6 dong déu treo clia Cong ty. Phuong thire nay ding dé thong qua cac van
dé chung trir cac béo cdo va to trinh tai Dai hoi.
One (01) “Voting Card” with the Delegate code, number of shares owned and/or
represented, and the Company's seal. This method is used to approve general
issues except for reports and proposals at the General Meeting.
= Mot (01) “Phibu bidu quyét” c6 ghi ma Dai biéu, téng sb phiéu biéu quyét s&
hiru va/hoic dai dién, c6 dong dau treo clia Cong ty, ding dé bibu quyét ddi véi
cac bdo cdo, t& trinh trong Dai hoi. Phuong thirc nay dung dé thong qua céac bao
cdo va to trinh tai Pai hoi.
One (01) “Voting form” with the Delegate code, total number of votes owned
and/or represented, with the Company’s seal, used to vote on reports and
proposals at the General Meeting.

3. Thé 1¢ biéu quyét / Voting rules
3.1 Phuwong thirc gio Thé biéu quyét / Method of raising Voting Card
_ M>5i Dai bidu tham dur duoc phat mét (01) Thé biu quyét. Khi tién hanh biéu quyét tai
Dai hoi, cac Dai bidu biéu quyét bang céach gio cao Thé bidu quyét. Phuong thic nay
13



dung dé thong qua céc van dé chung trong Dai hoi trir cac bao cdo va to trinh tai Pai
héi.
Each Delegate attending is given one (01) Voting Card. When voting at the meeting,
Delegates vote by raising their Voting Cards. This method is used to approve general
issues at the meeting except for reports and proposals at the Congress.

— Timg van d¢ duge dua ra truée Dai hdi thudc thdm quyén cta Pai hoi ddng ¢ dong
déu duoc xin y kién theo trinh tu:
Each issue brought before the General Meeting under the authority of the General
Meeting of Shareholders is consulted in the following order:

+ Tén thanh (ddng ¥) v&i ndi dung vira dugc trinh;

Approve of the content just presented;

+ Khong tén thanh (khoéng ddng ¥) véi ndi dung vira dugc trinh;
Disapprove of the content just presented;

+ Khong c6 y kién véi ndi dung vira dugc trinh.

No comments on the content just presented.

— Truong hop dai biéu khong gio Thé biéu quyét trong ca ba 1an bidu quyét tan thanh,
khong tén thanh va khong ¢6 ¥ kién ctia mot van dé thi duge xem nhu biéu quyét tan
thanh vén dé do.

In case a delegate does not raise the Voting Card in all three votes of approval,
disapproval and no opinion on an issue, it is considered as a vote of approval on that
issue.

—  Trudng hop dai biéu gio Thé biéu quyét nhiéu hon mét 14n véi mét ndi dung thi ¥ kién
cudi cling ctia dai biéu s& dugc ghi nhan véi ndi dung biéu quyét do.

In case a delegate raises the Voting Card more than once for one content, the
delegate’s final opinion will be recorded for that voting content.

3.1 Phuong thirc ngp Phiéu biéu quyét / Method of submitting voting form

a. Dai biéu tién hanh biéu quyét bang hinh thirc dién vao Phiéu biéu quyét. Pdi vdi timg
ndi dung biéu quyét, Pai biéu chon mét trong ba phuong 4n “Tan thanh”, “Khong
tan thanh”, “Khéng c6 y kién” dugc in sin trong Phiéu biéu quyét bang cach danh
déu "x" hodc "V" vao 6 ma Pai biéu chon. Sau khi d4nh diu vao c4c noi dung cén biéu
quyét, Pai biéu ky, ghi o ho tén va bé Phidu biéu quyét vao thing phiéu kin da dugc
niém phong tai Dai hoi theo huéng dan ciia Ban kiém phiéu.

Delegates vote by filling out the Voting Form. For each voting content, Delegates
choose one of the three options "Approve", "Disapprove", "No opinion" printed in
the Voting Form by marking "x" or "V in the box that the Delegate chooses. After
marking the contents to be voted, Delegates sign, write their full name and put the
Voting Form into the sealed ballot box at the meeting according to the instructions of
the Vote Counting Committee.
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b. Phiéu biéu quyét hop 1& / A voting form is valid when:

Phiéu theo mAu in s&n do Ban t6 chtrc phat ra.

It is a pre-printed form issued by the Organizing Committee.

Phiéu c6 diy di chit ky va ghi 16 ho tén ciia Dai biéu.

Have the signature and full name of the Delegate.

Phiéu khéng c6 gach xda, cao, sira chita, rach nat, ... khong ghi thém ndi dung
biéu quyét nao khéc. Khi ¢6 bd sung ndi dung, Dai biéu ghi diing s6 thr tu cia ndi
dung cin biéu quyét theo yéu ciu cia Ban to chrc.

The form must not be crossed out, scraiched, altered, torn, elc. and must not
contain any additional voting content. When additional content is added, the
Delegate must record the correct order number of the content to be voted upon as
required by the Organizing Committee.

Trén mi t& phiéu biéu quyét, c6 thé c6 nhidu ndi dung biéu quyét. Noi dung biéu
quyet dugc coi 1a hop 1€ khi Dai biéu danh d4u chon mot trong ba 8: “T4n thanh”,

“Khong tan thanh”, “Khong c6 y kién”. Noi dung bidu quyét duoc coi la khong
hop 1€ khi Dai biéu khong danh dau vao 6 bidu quyét nao hodc dénh d4u vao nhiéu
hon mét 6 biéu quyét ddi véi cing mot ndi dung bidu quyét. Truong hop to phiéu
biéu quyét hop 1¢ nhung c6 mét hodc mot s6 ndi dung biéu quyét khong hop 1€ thi
céc ndi dung hop 18 con lai vin dugc tinh vao két qua biéu quyét d6i véi ndi dung
hop 1€ do.

On each form, there may be multiple voting contents. Voting contents are
considered valid when the Delegate ticks one of the three boxes: "Agree",
"Disagree"”, "No opinion". Voting contents are considered invalid when the
Delegate does not tick any box or ticks more than one box for the same voting
content. In case the form is valid but has one or several invalid voting contents,
the remaining valid contents will still be counted in the voting results for that valid

content.

c. Phiéu biéu quyét khong hop 18 / 4 voting form is invalid when:

Phiéu khong theo mAu in sin ciia Ban t0 chirc phét ra.

It does not follow the pre-printed format issued by the Organizing Committee.
Phiéu khong c6 ddy dit chit ky va khong ghi rd ho tén ciia Pai biu.

It does not have the signature and full name of the Delegate.

Phiéu bj tdy x6a, cao, sira chita, rach nat, viét thém noi dung khac ngoai quy dinh
vao phiéu biéu quyét. Khi d6 tht ca cac ndi dung bidu quyét trén phiéu biéu quyét
1a khong hop 1€.

The form is erased, scratched, altered, torn, or has additional content written on

it other than specified. In that case, all voting content on the form is invalid.
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= Phiéu biéu quyét c6 tét ca cac ndi dung biéu quyét khong hop 1é.
The form contains all invalid voting contents.
=  Phiéu ndp sau khi Ban kiém phiéu da mé niém phong thiing phiéu.

The form is submitted after the Vote Counting Committee has opened the sealed
ballot box.

d. Trudng hop Pai biéu ¢6 yéu cau doi lai Phiéu biéu quyét do bi rach, nat, so suét viét

thém cac ky hiéu 1én Phiéu biéu quyét (“Phiéu bidu quyét héng™), néu Pai bibu chua
bo phiéu vao thing phiéu va chua hét thoi han bd phiéu, Pai biéu duoc quyén gap truc
tiép Ban Kiém phiéu dé tra lai Phiéu biéu quyét hong va déi liy Phidu bidu quyét méi
nhim dam béo quyén loi ctia Pai biéu. Ban Kiém phiéu tép hop céc Phiéu bidu quyét
héng gtri lai Poan Chu toa.

In case a Delegate requests to replace their form due to it being torn, damaged, or
having accidentally written additional symbols on the form ("damaged form"), if the
Delegate has not yet put the form into the ballot box and the voting period has not
expired, the Delegate has the right to meet directly with the Vote Counting Committee
to return the damaged form and exchange it for a new form. The Vote Counting
Committee collects the damaged form and sends them back to the Presidium.

Trudng hop Dai biéu dén du hop mudn, Pai biéu vin c6 quyén ding ky tham dy Pai
hoi va tham gia biéu quyét nhimg vén d&, noi dung tiép theo ciia Dai hoi. Pai bidu
khong c6 quyén tham gia bidu quyét nhimg van dé da bé phiéu xong. Trong trudong
hop nay hiéu luc ciia nhitng ndi dung biéu quyét trude d6 khong bi anh hudng.

In case a Delegate arrives late to the meeting, the Delegate still has the right to register
their attendance and participate in voting on the following issues and contents of the
meeting. The Delegate does not have the right to participate in voting on issues that
have already been voted on. In this case, the validity of the previously voted contents
is not affected.

Diéu 14. Diéu kién dé Nghi quyét Pai hoi dong c6 dong duoc thong qua

Article 14. Conditions for the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders to be
passed

1.

Trir cac trudng hop quy dinh tai khoan 2 Piéu nay va khoan 3, khoan 4 Didu 20 Pidu
1¢ Cong ty. Nghi quyét, quyét dinh v& ndi dung sau day dugc thong qua néu dugce sb
cb dong dai dién it nhit 65% téng s& phiéu biéu quyét cua tét ca cic cd dong du hop
chép thuén:

Except for the cases specified in Clause 2 of this Article and Clauses 3 and 4 of Article
20 of the Company Charter, Resolutions and decisions on the following contents shall
be passed if approved by at least 65% of the total number of votes of all shareholders
attending the meeting:

a. Loaicd phan va sb lugng co phz"in dugc chao ban;
16



Type of shares and number of shares offered;

b. Sap nhap, ti td chirc va giai thé Cong ty;
Merging, reorganization and dissolution of the Company,

€ Quyét dinh dau tu, giao dich ban tai san Coéng ty hodc chi nhanh hodc giao dich
mua tai san c6 gia tri tir 35% trd 1€n tdng gia tri tai san cta Cong ty tinh theo bao
cdo tai chinh gin nhét dugc kiém toan.
Decisions on investment, transactions to sell assets of the Company or branches or

transactions to purchase assets with a value of 35% or more of the total value of
the Company's assets calculated according to the most recent audited financial

statements.
d. Thay déi nganh nghé, linh vuc kinh doanh.
Change of profession or business field.
2. Cacnghi quyét, quyét dinh khac dugc thdng qua khi dugc s6 cb dong sé hiru trén 50%
téng sé phiéu biéu quyét ctia tht ca cb dong du hop tan thanh.
Other resolutions and decisions are passed when approved by shareholders owning
more than 50% of the total votes of all shareholders attending the meeting.
Chwong V
BIEN BAN, NGHI QUYET PAI HQI PONG CO PONG
Chapter V

MINUTE AND RESOLUTIONS OF THE GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS

Piédu 15. Bién ban va Nghi quyét ciia Dai hji déng cb dong:

Article 15. Minutes and Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders:

1. Toan bd didn bién tai cudc hop Pai hoi dong cb dong dugc Ban thu ky ghi chép va lap
thanh Bién ban cudc hop Pai hi dong cd dong. Bién ban phai c¢6 chir ky cua Chu toa
va Truéng Ban Thu ky.

All proceedings at the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be recorded by the

Secretariat and made into the Minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders. The
Minutes must be signed by the Chairman and the Head of the Secretariat.

2. Bién ban cudc hop va Nghi quyét dai hoi ddng cb dong duge doc va thong qua trude
khi bé mac Dai hoi.
Minutes of the meeting and Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders shall
be read and approved before the closing of the General Meeting.

Chwong VI
HIEU LUC THI HANH
Chapter VI

17



EFFECTIVENESS

Piéu 16. Hiéu lwe thi hanh:

Article 16. This document comes into effect when:

1.

Quy ché nay gdm 6 chuong, 16 Diéu v c6 hiéu luc thi hanh ngay sau khi duoc Pai
hoi dong c6 dong biéu quyét thong qua.
This statute consists of 6 chapters and 16 Articles and takes effect immediately after
being approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
Dai biéu va cac bén tham du Dai hoi c6 trach nhiém thuc hién theo c4c quy dinh tai
Quy ché nay.
Delegates and participants of the meeting are responsible for complying with the
provisions of this statute.
TM. BAN TO CHUC PAI HOI
CHU TICH HQI PONG QUAN TRI

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

CHAIRMAN

o \ ,Y TE“' f,*j{rj
< \HAI DUO) ;‘9)"
YE
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Hai Duong, March, 11 k2025

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PRESENTED TO THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025

Distinguished Guests,
Esteemed Shareholders of HDPHARMA,

In accordance with the Charter on the organization and operation of Hai
Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock Company, the Board of
Directors hereby presents to the General Meeting a report on the activities of the
Board of Directors in 2024 and the strategic directions for the coming years as

follows:

I. ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN 2024

1. Board of Directors personnel

At the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2024, the Board of
Directors for the 2024—2029 term was elected with the trust of the shareholders.
As of the reporting date, the Board consists of three members:

No FULL NAME POSITION

1 | Nguyen Trung Viet Chairman of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors —

2 | Nguyen Thi Tu Anh ,
General Director of the Company

3 | Tran Phuc Duong Member of the Board of Directors

The members of the Board of Directors have fully attended all Board
meetings (providing opinions on all matters through the written consultation
method) with a high sense of responsibility. They have demonstrated strong
leadership capabilities and professional expertise, prioritizing the company's
sustainable development and ensuring the best interests of the company and its
shareholders.

The members of the Board of Directors have successfully fulfilled their
assigned duties, including:

A * Mo
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- The Chairman of the Board of Directors has performed his functions,
duties, rights, and obligations in accordance with the Law on Enterprises,
the Company's Charter, and the Board of Directors' Operating
Regulations.

- The members of the Board of Directors have made significant
contributions to the management and supervision of the company's
business operations.

2. Activities of the Board of Directors

- The Board of Directors operates in accordance with the Charter on the
organization and operation of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical and Medical

Equipment Joint Stock Company.

- Each year, the Board of Directors reports to the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders on its activities, specifically regarding the Board’s
supervision of the Executive Director during the financial year.

- Two members of the Board of Directors—the Chairman and the General
Director—are directly involved in managing the company and closely
accompanying its operations.

In 2024, the Board of Directors held eleven (11) regular and extraordinary
meetings to focus on addressing key issues, including the implementation of the
resolutions of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the
development and execution of the company’s 2024 business plan, the review of
the company’s development strategy, and the strengthening of the company’s
leadership and management personnel. The resolutions reached by the Board in
these meetings provided important strategic directions for the Executive Board
to implement the targets set by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

All Board meetings were convened and conducted in compliance with
regulations, ensuring 100% attendance of Board members, with most voting
matters achieving high consensus. The Head of the Supervisory Board was
invited to attend all Board meetings.

Resolutions and decisions were disclosed in accordance with current legal
regulations.

3. Results of Supervision and Evaluation of the Executive Board and
Management Departments

e, T T T
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The Board of Directors regularly supervises management personnel,
requiring the executive team to provide periodic and ad-hoc reports, as well as
timely updates on business and production fluctuations, allowing the Board to
take prompt corrective actions. Regular inspections of business operations are
conducted to ensure timely adjustments. As a result, all management personnel
have successfully fulfilled their assigned duties.

- Supervision results for management personnel:

The management personnel appointed by the Board of Directors, based on
the General Director’s recommendations, have strictly complied with the tasks
assigned by the General Director. They have effectively executed management
directives and operational decisions, ensuring that business and production
activities meet the set requirements. There have been no instances of non-
compliance or task refusal. Moreover, they have provided valuable
recommendations to enhance operational efficiency. In 2024, mid-level
management (workshop and department heads) were assessed by the Board as
having generally fulfilled their assigned responsibilities.

- General assessment:

In 2024, the activities of the Board of Directors were conducted in full
compliance with legal regulations and the company’s Charter while carrying out
its functions and responsibilities. The timely issuance of resolutions and
decisions by the Board has facilitated effective management, addressing
challenges, particularly in business and production operations.

4. Remuneration of the Board of Directors: As stipulated in the
Charter.

(The remuneration of the Board of Directors is disclosed in the audited
2024 financial statements presented to the General Meeting of Shareholders. )

II. IMPLEMENTATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS'
DUTIES IN 2024 AND PLANS FOR THE UPCOMING PERIOD

The business performance results for 2024 have been presented in detail in the
Executive Board's report. In this report, on behalf of the Board of Directors, I
will highlight the key issues of particular interest to our esteemed shareholders:

~ The Company's Strategy;
- The Company's Growth;
- The Company's Stock.
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1. The Company’s Strategy

In 2015, on behalf of the Board of Directors, I drafted a 10-year strategy
for HDPHARMA. I would like to highlight the key points of that strategy.

The 20152025 strategy provided a comprehensive analysis of the global
pharmaceutical industry, the pharmaceutical sector in Vietnam, its development
trends, and HDPHARMA's internal potential. It set forth the goal of
modernizing production, establishing manufacturing lines that meet the highest
global standards—specifically EU GMP—and positioning HDPHARMA
among the leading pharmaceutical enterprises in Vietnam.

At that time, this strategy was considered unrealistic, and nearly everyone
in Vietnam's pharmaceutical industry doubted that HDPHARMA could truly

achieve it.

Why was that? In 2015, HDPHARMA'’s market capitalization was
approximately VND 100 billion, whereas leading pharmaceutical companies
had significantly larger valuations: Hau Giang Pharmaceutical: VND 9,000
billion; Traphaco: VND 2,061 billion; Domesco: VND 1,143 billion;
Imexpharm: VND 920 billion. At that time, HDPHARMA’s market
capitalization was only 1% to 5% of these leading companies. Additionally,
shareholders were reluctant to contribute more capital, making this mission
extremely challenging.

However, looking back today, we have successfully completed the first
phase of the HDPHARMA factory, with a production line meeting EU GMP
standards. The company's market capitalization has increased tenfold, reaching
approximately VND 1,000 billion. This is truly a remarkable achievement.

2. Future strategy for the next 10 years

Basically, the next 10 years will follow the existing strategy, which
means that the primary goal remains the construction of additional EU GMP-
compliant production lines, develops production to the highest level of
modernization in Vietnam’s pharmaceutical industry, and positions
HDPHARMA as one of the leading companies in the sector.

Specific Tasks:
- At the HDPHARMA EU Factory:
+ Constructing and completing two Cephalosporin production lines in
Building 4C;
+ Constructing Buildings 4B, 4D, and the office building.

Eecad' | |
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- Optimizing and expanding production on the company’s existing

manufacturing lines.

- Collaborating with global partners and major corporations to achieve
breakthrough growth in revenue.

- Developing human resources to support long-term strategic goals.

- Improving, modernizing, and expanding the business system to enhance
operational efficiency and market competitiveness.

3. The Company’s Stock

The strategy is to gradually increase charter capital to enhance the
company's value, thereby increasing the value of its stock.

The above outlines the Board of Directors' activities in 2024 and the
strategic directions for the coming years.

Although there are many challenges ahead, we - HDPHARMA members
- will, with passion, intelligence, and unity, strive to achieve the set objectives
and turn the dream of making HDPHARMA a leading pharmaceutical
enterprise into reality.

I wish HDPHARMA shareholders patience and confidence as we work
toward great future achievements. I also extend my best wishes for good health
and a wonderful day to all distinguished guests.

Thank you!
i ON BEHALF OF
- Company’s shareholders;
- Members of the Board of Directors and THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Supervisory Board;

- Office filing.
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Hai Duong, March 11, 2025
REPORT ON 2024 PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS RESULTS TO THE
2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Dear delegates!

Dear shareholders present at the meeting!

Today, as usual, April is the season of General Meetings of Shareholders for
enterprises nationwide, Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock
Company with the brand name HDPHARMA is holding the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders to report on the production and business results in 2024, and
set out tasks and targets for production and business activities in 2025.

We are honored to welcome distinguished guests and all shareholders of Hai
Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock Company to today’s meeting.

We wish our guests and shareholders good health, happiness and success.

Dear guests and shareholders!

2024 was a year with many unusual events: global economic recession, many
natural disasters and terrible devastation, regional conflicts in Eastern Europe
between Russia and the Ukraine and the Middle East Gulf causing a global economic,
political and environmental crisis as we know. Vietnam as well as countries in the
Southeast Asian region faced many difficult challenges to stabilise national politics
and macroeconomics. Enterprises were severely affected in all areas of production,
business, investment environment, and increased inflation. Many enterprises had to
stop doing business or undergo dissolution, especially small and medium enterprises.
Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock Company, a local company
with the scale of a small and medium enterprise, was even more deeply affected.
However, the 6th General Meeting of Shareholders had proposed appropriate
solutions and plans, so it had stood firm, continued to develop on a larger and more
modern scale, ensuring the interests of shareholders, improving the lives of company

employees, and fulfilling the company's obligations to the state and society. To
1
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achieve such positive results, the Board of Directors of the company held a General
Meeting of Shareholders to resolve strategic issues, policies and select optimal
solutions that have been and are being implemented effectively by all staff and
employees of the company. At the end of the 2024 fiscal year, today Hai Duong
Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock Company is holding an Annual
General Meeting to evaluate the results of production and business activities in 2024
and specify goals and tasks for the 2025 fiscal year.
I. Achievements
Today, I would like to report on the main and most important targets that
investors and shareholders are interested in. As the General Manager with the
functions and duties prescribed by the Enterprise Law, the Company Charter and the
assignment of the Board of Directors, who is the person directly leading, managing,
operating, and is responsible for implementing all targets assigned by the Board of
Directors, I would like to further analyse the audited data in the tables and figures, so
that shareholders attending the General Meeting know and understand the
achievements and detail of the company's activities, which demonstrated the hard
work and the intellectual dedication of all the company's staff and the support of the
company's shareholders.
Production and Business Results in 2024
Audited financial statements for 2024 include:
1. Report of the Board of Directors
2. Report of the Auditor
3. Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2024
4. Business performance report in 2024
5. Cash flow statement in 2024
6. Explanation of the 2024 financial statements
In 2024, the Company signed a contract with Vietnam Auditing and Valuation
Company Limited to audit our financial statements. The independent audit report
recognised that the financial statements prepared and presented by the Company to

the General Meeting were truthful, reasonable, in accordance with current
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Vietnamese accounting standards and regimes and legal regulations related to the

preparation and presentation of financial statements.

1. Results of the 2024 production plan
Currency: dong

% of the annual plan
No. | Production department Produced = % of the
plan
1 |OSDLINE1-EU 16.260.482.371 | 18.000.000.000 90,3%
2 | OSDLINE 2 - WHO 22.693.647.903 | 30.000.000.000 75,6%
3 | HERBAL EXTRACT 38.070.609.290 | 42.000.000.000 | 90,6%
LINE
4 | TOPICAL SEMI-SOLID 18.960.449.309 | 25.000.000.000 | 75,8%
AND LIQUID LINE
5 | SOFTGEL LINE 84.182.129.160 | 120.000.000.000 | 70,2%
6 | ORAL LIQUID LINE 0.840.947.435 10.000.000.000 | 98,4%
7 | STERILE INJECTION 87.089.775.819 | 96.000.000.000 | 90,7%
AND EYE DROP LINE
8 | OSD LINE (102 CHI 73.024.008.349 |  95.000.000.000 | 76,9%
LANG)
TOTAL 350.122.049.636 | 436.000.000.000 | 80,3%

Thus, compared to the planned target of 436 billion in 2024, the production
department achieved 80.3% of the plan, 19.7% less than the target; Compared to
2023, it increased by 5.09%, equivalent to the amount of 16,945,585,932 VND.
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2. Results of business plan implementation and financial work

Some basic targets in the audited 2024 financial report:

No. TARGET Ay
: (VIND)
1 Total assets 646.386.356.355
2 Equity 454.259.165.645
2.1 | Owner's equity 279.473.170.000
2.2 | Development investment fund 124.594.214.888
2.3 | Undistributed profit after tax 50.191.780.757
2.4.1 | Undistributed profit after tax of previous year 9.870.172.861
2.4.2 | Undistributed profit after tax of this year 40.321.607.896
3 Revenue from sales of goods and provision of services | 668.056.188.242
4. | Revenue deductions 3.054.479.448
5 Total Net Revenue and Other Income 667.787.566.312
51 Net. revenue from sales of goods and provision of .
services

5.2 | Revenue from financial activities 633.388.787
5.3 | Other income 2.152.468.731
6 Total costs 579.984.760.678
6.1 | Cost of goods 454.778.265.987
6.2 | Financial costs 6.255.488.148
6.3 | Cost of sales 74.149.536.551
6.4 | Business management costs 81.814.791.647
6.5 | Other costs 8.775.306
7 Total accounting profit before tax 50.788.508.673
8 Current corporate income tax expense 10.179.727.977
9 Profit after corporate income tax 40.608.780.696
10 | Basic earnings/ 01 share 1.453
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- Revenue:
Total revenue minus internal revenue: 668,056,188,242 VND; reaching

84.56% of the 2024 target, increased by 8.4% compared to 2023, equivalent to the
amount of 51,805,172,382 VND.

- Profit before corporate income tax: VND 50,788,508,673, increased by
28.6% compared to 2023, equivalent to the amount of VND 11,296,588,956.

- Payable corporate income tax: 10.179.727.977 VND
- Profit after corporate income tax: 40.608.780.696 VND

In 2024, our company only achieved the target of profit after corporate income
tax, but did not complete the targets of production output value and business sales
according to the resolution of the shareholders' meeting.

- Reason:
+ The world economy in general and Vietnam in particular is still facing many

difficulties, slow recovery, and significant decline in purchasing power of domestic
and foreign markets.

+ The group of processing customers also faced difficulties due to competition
and the impact of economic downturn, especially the group of customers ordering

health food products.

+ EU production lines have been assessed and certified, but the number of
registrations were not high, so there were not many products on the market.

- Capital:

+ Working capital: In 2024, we performed monthly budget planning, thereby
taking reasonable measures in using capital sources in payment, quick capital
turnover, balancing and finding sources of working capital loans with reasonable
interest rates, thereby saving 2,274,635,786 VND in interest costs on production and
business loans.

+ Project capital:

We signed a medium-term loan contract with BIDV Bank to provide capital
for the HDPHRMA factory phase 2 project with a total project cost including VAT
of 370 billion, comprised of 236 billion from the medium-term loan capital by the

5
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bank; and 134 billion in equity capital. By December 31, 2024, capital had been
disbursed for consulting and construction contracts, equipment purchase contracts,
with the amount: 72,863,338,374 VND, of which equity capital was: 69,0 14,235,017
VND; Medium-term loan capital from the bank was: 3,849,103,357 VND.

- Payment to the State budget:

In 2024, we paid taxes, social insurance, health insurance, unemployment

insurance and union fees fully and on time to the state.

- Average income in 2024:
In 2024, the average income/person/month was: 11,774,000 VND, an increase

0f 960,000 VND compared to 2023.
- Investment in purchasing fixed assets:

In 2024, the company invested in purchasing advanced machinery and equipment
and upgrading the factory for GMP-WHO re-evaluation, in order to increase production
capacity and improve product quality with a total investment of 11,076,440,334 VND,
of which machinery and equipment for production and management were 8,700,270,5 04
VND, and the factory accounted for 2,376,169,830 VND.

- Long-term Investment

In 2024, the Company had been implementing phase 2 of the HDPHARMA EU
Factory project - Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock Company in
Cam Thuong: "Construction of 02 new pharmaceutical lines including Powder Injection
and Betalactam Tablets for Cephalosporin antibiotics that meet EU-GMP standards".
The project started in June 2024 and is expected to be completed in 2025.

As of December 31, 2024, capital had been disbursed for consulting and
construction contracts, MM-TB purchase contracts of the project with the amount of
VND 72,863,338,374, of which equity capital was VND 69,014,235,017; Medium-
term loan capital from the bank accounted for VND 3,849,103,357.

- Fixed asset depreciation, equipment allocation and prepaid expenses:
+ In 2024, fixed asset depreciation was allocated: VND 27,271,030,065, an
increase of VND 4,099,352,231 compared to 2023.
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+ In 2024, allocated fixed assets and prepaid expenses were 9,900,373,360
VND, an increase of 1,346,003,436 VND compared to 2023.

- On professional work and financial management.

+ In 2024, financial work was enhanced with a system of standards, work
processes, and financial management regulations applied synchronously throughout
the company. Principles of revenue, expenditure, procurement, and price appraisal
processes were increasingly improved. Financial management was performed in a way
that ensured publicity, accuracy, and transparency. The use of capital in production and
business was always for the right purpose, economical, and effective.

+ The issue of receivables has been improved and tightened. The classification,
monitoring and payment urging was regularly combined between the Sales
Department - Accounting - and the collection department. There were decisive
measures in combining sales and collection suitable for each customer group, the
result is that overdue debts and debts exceeding the ceiling have decreased
significantly, and debts from processing and exporting customers are well controlled.

+ In 2024, we balanced our capital sources, fully and promptly met capital
needs for production and business and reserve of raw materials, made use of credit
packages with interest rate support at the Investment Bank, flexibly used bank
deposits to increase efficiency from financial activities, resulting in a 2,274,635,786

VND decrease in interest expenses compared to 2023.

+ Performed monthly and quarterly financial reporting and analysis to
promptly serve the Board of Directors and the Board of Management in managing
the company's production, business and investment activities. Organized scientific
accounting work to meet the Company's financial management and accounting

requirements. Complied with the Accounting Law and current accounting standards.

Dear delegates, investors and shareholders!

In the context of complex developments in the world and the region, which have
had a profound impact on the domestic and international markets, under the leadership
of the Party and the direction of all levels of government from ministries, departments,

7
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offices to medical and pharmaceutical establishments including pharmaceutical
enterprises and hospitals, the domestic pharmaceutical industry has maintained its
production, business, supply and distribution activities to ensure the needs of disease
prevention, medical examination, treatment and health improvement of the people,
responding well to national health care programs.

However, for businesses like Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint
Stock Company, in difficult and challenging circumstances, we are also greatly affected
and subject to adjustments by the domestic and international pharmaceutical market.

As we know, the world economy is changing dramatically due to the digital
revolution of the 4% industrial era, which has completely changed strategies and policies
as well as laws and social environment in general, particularly small and medium
enterprises such as Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock Company.

Faced with such opportunities and challenges, the Board of Directors and the
company's management team, together with all staff, with their dynamism,
enthusiasm and creativity, have oriented and made appropriate decisions to quickly
adapt and, based on research and development efforts, innovate to apply new
technology, gradually digitise management and operation activities as well as
organise implementation in all units' operations, so the company has effectively
achieved most of the set goals. The company is now ranked among the top branded

pharmaceutical enterprises and is trusted by customers.

With the results that the company achieved and as shown in this report, I would
like to present some important contents to affirm the value of the enterprise, the
benefits of shareholders and the motivation for the company to develop continuously
and sustainably, which are intangible values not shown in the financial report.

3. HDPHARMA Brand

The previous terms of the General Meeting of Shareholders had determined

the goal of building the HD Pharma brand with the highest focus on product quality
and customer service. The company's image has created a position in the
pharmaceutical market nationwide. In the past years, the company has focused on
building a modern business strategy with a network of distributors spread across the
country. A system of 5 branches in the provinces and 4 branches in Hanoi, Da Nang,
Ho Chi Minh City and Can Tho. With 195 pharmaceutical representatives, the

8
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company's products have been brought to consumers. The company's products have
won bids and are used in hospitals, central and local public health facilities. The
company's products have reached the world. In 2024, the company exported products
to 5 countries with a revenue of nearly 43 billion VND.

As mentioned above, in the period of deep and comprehensive globalisation,
which is also the 6% term of the Company's General Meeting of Shareholders,
maintaining the company's position as in previous terms will be at risk of decline due
to competition from large pharmaceutical companies, food and cosmetic
manufacturers in the world, and multinational corporations.

The company is investing in high-tech production with a GMP-EU
pharmaceutical factory in Cam Thuong Industrial Park, Hai Duong City, with an IT-
based management system and automation of the entire production line; thoroughly
innovating management in all company activities, especially building a quality
management system with standardised processes, customer service quality, and
evaluating performance in production, business and services including management
and administration. The company's leaders and staff are determined to take the brand
as the center, innovate internally from leadership thinking to management capacity,
and practice new standardised processes, which have gradually overcome
shortcomings. We work towards comprehensive innovation, focusing on quality and
work efficiency, in line with the current trend of the 4.0 industrial era and the
globalisation period. HDPHARMA EU factory has a Nonbetalactam tablet production
line that meets EU-GMP standards and has been put into operation and brought
products to the market, gradually affirming the position of the HD PHARMA brand.

The investment has resulted in quality with modern new technology, products
meeting EU-GMP and GMP - WHO standards, increasing value for customers, thereby
elevating the value of the HDPHARMA brand.

In addition to building modern production lines, the company has built
specialised medicinal herb growing areas according to GACP standards to standardise
medicinal herbs as raw materials for the company's herbal medicine products. By now,
the company has been approved by GACP for 4 medicinal herbs: Polyscias fruticosa,

Desmodium styracifolium, Phyllanthus urinaria and bitter Phyllanthus urinaria. This
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increases the value of the company's herbal products in providing medicine for

treatment and export.

Current production facilities
At factory 1: The company has 6 GMP-WHO standard production lines for

medicine, 2 GMP health supplement production lines, and 1 cosmetic production line.

At factory 2: The company has 3 GMP-WHO lines and 1 EU-GMP line.

I would like to inform that, up to this point, the new 4C building has completed
the basic construction for 2 production lines of Cephalosporin antibiotic tablets and
injections according to EU-GMP standards, with the goal of complete installation and
be audit-ready in accordance with the regulations of the European Medicines Agency
by the end of 2025.

4. Human resources: The company's motto is that employees are the
company's assets, so improving professional qualifications and skills, fostering an
interactive environment, creating a unified and effective working environment is
always of interest and strongly implemented. The company has organised regular
training, self-training for all managers and direct employees to supplement
knowledge and professional skills, particularly improving responsibility and work
ethics. As a result, we are confident that each individual has mastered and been
proactive in the production and business activities, which contributes the company's
strategic goals set by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Innovation, creativity, discipline, seriousness in work and research; saving all
materials, fuel, and energy is our corporate culture. We always strive to increase labor
productivity and reduce production costs to remain competitive. The tradition of
solidarity and mutual support is the core feature of the company's organisational
development. All members, from workers, intellectuals to the Board of Directors,
trust, love and unite wholeheartedly for the mission and tasks of the Company,
creating our own special assets. This forms the market and trust with the Company's

customers and creates the brand image of HDPharma.

10
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Staff structure by the end of December 2024:
No. Qualification Quantity (People)

1 Master -

2 Bachelor of pharmacy/Specialist 140

3 Other bachelors il |

4 Associate degree of pharmacy 118

5 Other associate degrees 34

6 Intermediate degree of pharmacy 292

7 Other intermediate degrees 54

Training certificates and technical

8 workers 42

9 Unskilled workers 41
TOTAL 836

IL. Directions and targets for the fiscal year 2025

Dear delegates and guests!

With the 2025 production and business plan, the company's total revenue target
is 840 billion, including internal revenue and production output of 476 billion. The

whole company must make every effort with specific solutions.

The motto of building the HDPharma brand is to affirm its value through top
quality products, quality production, efficient services with the best standard
processes, the highest quality of customer service and the best benefits to consumers.
Innovation and digitalisation are the guiding ideas throughout the existence and
development of the Company. Especially the competition in the 4.0 industrial
revolution period does not allow us to stay out of the game because if we do not
participate, we will be competed and eliminated because the current market is
changing very quickly and radically. Only businesses that meet the requirements of

this changing market can survive and develop.

To implement the strategic development goals and achieve the expected targets
in economy, life and security, safety and sustainability for the company, it is necessary

to resolve the following issues:
1. Optimise operating processes and minimise production costs

Maximise data on production time and machine performance. Build flexible

production schedules to increase efficiency and labor productivity to ensure on-time

11
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delivery. Adjust production output based on market analysis through sales data
consumption trends, competitive socio-economic factors and bidding to accurately
predict future product demand.

2. Supply chain management:

- Forecast demand based on data analysis of historical usage, consumption,
market trends and influencing factors.

- Optimise supply sources: optimise transportation and logistics by choosing
routes, tracking and effectively managing means of transport, thereby reducing
transportation time and costs.

_ Automate the purchasing process: with Al processing large amounts of data
from various sources such as purchase history, suppliers, prices, etc. to compare and
select suitable partners in terms of quality, time and price, manage purchasing
contracts with suppliers, and ensure compliance with contracts.

3. Marketing and sales:

The goal is to improve marketing effectiveness (customer outreach, content
personalisation, budget optimisation, advertising) while supporting sales (lead
management, demand forecasting) thoroughly and easily.

- Automate marketing processes at reasonable costs.

- Customer analysis and advertising optimisation: campaign management and
marketing performance tracking

- Sales support: customer management and demand forecasting. Enhance
customer experience and increase customer loyalty to the company's products and
services

4. Testing and implementing highly competitive production and business models
to survive and develop in the period of rapid technological development of the 4.0
industrial revolution, which is digital technology, big data, Internet of Things and
especially artificial intelligence.

5. In-depth investment in research and development to create products with high
intellectual content and good treatment effects to serve public health.

In this meeting, the new Board of Directors would also like to specify practical
strategic goals to develop the Company better and more effectively, increase equity;
guarantee that investors' capital is always profitable. We will strive to complete the

tasks assigned to us in the interest of shareholders.

12
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Dear delegates and guests!

Today, April 3, 2025, we hold the 6™ annual general meeting of shareholders
in this solemn auditorium. As a new year begins, we have the right to be proud of
what the company has achieved. We are steadily developing, bringing better and
better benefits to shareholders, contributing to the rapid development of the domestic
pharmaceutical industry, providing jobs, improving the lives of employees, fulfilling
tax obligations to increase state budget revenue. Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical
Materials Joint Stock Company is determined to make HDPharma a strong brand, a
dream place to work for young intellectual talents and workers. The achievements we
have are the foundation to complete the goals of this year and the next phase. This
belief is shared by the Board of Directors and all of us, the company's shareholders.
This report is also the basis for the company's shareholders and investors to consider
and vote on the economic, financial tasks and development policies for the fiscal year
2025. The company's Board of Directors appreciates the intellectual contributions
and resources of shareholders and investors, which will help us effectively implement
the policies, production and business tasks for 2025 and the following years that are
set forth in this meeting.

There are many difficulties, but we will believe in the right path, strategy, and
appropriate policies. We will seize opportunities, exploit all resources, work
effectively, and be determined to overcome all difficulties and challenges to achieve ﬁ\
the expected strategic goals and achieve success. \?}a “

Wishing the meeting a success, wishing our distinguished guests, shareholders and ) * f:.f
everyone attending the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Hai Duo:g?/
Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock Company good health, joy, happiness and

good luck!
Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
- Company’s shareholders; DIRECTORS

- Board of directors and supervisors;
- Archive.
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HAI DUONG PHARMACEUTICAL AND MEDICAL SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
MATERIALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom — Happiness
SUPERVISORY BOARD Hai Duong, March 06, 2025

REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
AT THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Presented to: The General Meeting of Shareholders of Hai Duong
Pharmaceutical and Medical Materials Joint Stock Company

- Based on the Articles of Organization and Operation of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical
and Medical Materials Joint Stock Company;

- Based on the powers and responsibilities of the Supervisory Board as stipulated in
the Articles;

- Based on the audited financial statements for 2024 of the company.

In the performance of its functions and responsibilities in accordance with the
Enterprise Law and the Company’s Articles, the Supervisory Board (SB) hereby reports to
the General Meeting of Shareholders the results of the inspection and supervision of
activities in 2024, as well as the operating plan for 2025.

I. ACTIVITIES OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD IN 2024

The Supervisory Board of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical and Medical Materials Joint
Stock Company consists of three members. The Board assigned tasks to each member and
successfully completed its responsibilities in 2024 as stipulated by the Enterprise Law and
the Company’s Articles, specifically as follows:

- Supervision of Management: Supervised the activities of the Board of Directors
and the General Director in managing and operating the company.

- Financial Oversight: Monitored the financial status, management and preservation
of capital, and the implementation of quarterly and annual plans.

- Monitoring Business Implementation: Oversaw the execution of the production
and business plan as approved by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, and
inspected and supervised the business operations of affiliated branches.

- Evaluation of Reports: Reviewed the legality and accuracy of the company’s

production and business performance report and financial statements audited by an



independent auditing firm, as well as the management report presented by the Board of
Directors at the General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Control of Documentation: Ensured that the procedures for issuing documents
complied with the legal provisions and the Company’s Articles.

- Auditor Selection: Proposed the selection of an independent auditing firm.

- Participation in Key Meetings: Attended meetings of the Board of Directors and
the General Director’s meetings on important matters related to the company’s business
strategy. The Board examined internal documents issued by the Board of Directors and the
General Director to ensure that the guidelines and policies conformed with legal
requirements and were consistent with the resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders. The Board also contributed to discussions on various aspects of production,

business operations, investments, and other matters.

- Recommendations for Improvement: Proposed measures to the Board of Directors

for amending, supplementing, and improving the organizational structure and management

of the company.
II. RESULTS OF THE SUPERVISION OF THE COMPANY’S ACTIVITIES

1. Financial Statements for 2024

1.1. Financial Statement Figures

(Unit: VND)

No. Indicator Beginning Balance Ending Balance

1 Total Assets 578,985,769,945 646,386,356,355
1.1 | Current Assets 266,604,877,103 341,149,168,182
1.2 | Non-current Assets 312,380,892,842 305,237,748,766

2 | Liabilities & Equity 578,985,769,945 646,386,356,355
2.1 | Payables 158,850,659,496 192,127,190,710
2.2 | Shareholders' Equity 420,135,110,449 454,259,165,645




1.2 Production and Business Performance

(Unit: VND)

Indicator

2024

1. Revenue from goods and services

668,056,188,242

2. Deductions

3,054,479,448

3. Net Revenue

665,001,708,794

4. Cost of Goods Sold

454,770,265,987

5. Gross Profit

210,231,442,807

N

. Financial Income

633,188,787

7. Financial Expenses

6,255,488,148

8. Selling Expenses

74,149,536,551

9. Administrative Expenses

81,814,791,647

10. Net Operating Profit

48,644,815,248

11. Other Income

2,143,693,425

12. Total Profit before Tax

50,788,508,673

15. Basic Earnings per Share

13. Current Corporate Income Tax Expenses 10,179,727,977
14. Net Profit after Tax 40,608,780,696
1,453

2. Review of Reports

2.1. Review of Financial Statements

AVA Vietnam Audit and Valuation Co., Ltd. conducted the audit and issued an

unqualified opinion on the financial statements for fiscal year 2024. The Supervisory Board

proactively coordinated discussions and reviewed the audit findings. Based on this, we

concur with the auditor’s opinion that the financial statements fairly and accurately reflect

the company’s financial position as of December 31, 2024, as well as its business

performance and cash flows for the fiscal year ended on that date, in compliance with



Vietnamese accounting standards, enterprise accounting regulations, and relevant legal
provisions.

- The 2024 financial statements fully reflect the company’s operations in
compliance with the prescribed reporting formats and deadlines.

- The bookkeeping was carried out in accordance with the accounting regulations
issued by the Ministry of Finance.

- The accounting records and supporting documents are properly maintained, neatly
organized, and readily retrievable, meeting the requirements for inspection and audit.

- The company effectively implemented the financial reporting system, promptly
disclosing information to shareholders and the State Securities Commission as required by
law.

2.2. Review of the Business Performance Report by the General Director

The Supervisory Board reviewed the General Director’s report on production and
business performance for 2024, which covers the implementation of production plans,
financial management, human resource management, risk management, and other
administrative functions under the General Director’s responsibility. The report accurately
reflects the company’s actual performance in terms of revenue and profit as shown in the
2024 financial statements.

2.3. Review of the Management and Operations Report by the Board of
Directors

The Board of Directors prepared an operational report for 2024 and an operating
plan for 2025, which were submitted at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.
The report provides a detailed evaluation of the company’s performance regarding strategic
orientation and corporate restructuring.

The Board of Directors directed and guided the company on critical issues related
to investment, human resource development, organizational structure, and the amendment
and issuance of internal regulations.

The report on management and operations for 2024 is consistent with the reality of
the company’s operations, the rights and obligations of the Board as stipulated in the
Articles, and complies with current legal requirements.

3. Supervision Results of the Implementation of the 2024 Shareholders’
Resolution by the Board of Directors and the General Director

- Implementation of Production and Business Plan Targets:



+ Total Revenue: VND 668,056,188,242, achieving 84.56% of the target, an

8.4% increase compared to 2023, equivalent to VND 51,805,172,382.

+ Production Output Value: VND 350,122,049,636; reaching 80.30% of the
target; a 5.09% increase over 2023, equivalent to VND 16,945,585,932.

+ Net Profit after Tax: VND 40,608,780,696; achieving 130.99% of the
approved target, an increase of VND 9,094,710,767 compared to 2023, a growth

rate of 28.85%.

- In 2024, the basic earnings per share were 1,453 VND per share.

- In 2024, the company carried out a rights issue (capital increase from equity) at
37% as approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders, amounting to VND
75,476,870,000, equivalent to 7,547,687 shares, and simultaneously completed the
registration of these shares to ensure shareholders’ trading rights on the UPCOM market.

- In 2024, cash dividends for 2023 were distributed at a rate of 3% in accordance
with the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders, totaling VND 6,119,889,000.

- Funds were allocated in line with the profit distribution plan approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

- AVA Vietnam Audit and Valuation Co., Ltd. was selected to review the financial
statements for the first half of the year and audit the full financial statements for 2024 in
accordance with the Securities Law and the regulations of the State Securities Commission.

- Remuneration was paid to the Board of Directors at 3% and to the Supervisory
Board at 1% of the net profit after corporate income tax, in accordance with the Company’s
Articles and the resolution approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

- The charter capital at the end of 2024 was VND 279,473,170,000, an increase of
VND 75,476,870,000 compared to 2023—an increase of 37%. This increase resulted from
the 37% rights issue from equity approved by the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders,
which enhanced the owners’ capital contributions.

- In 2024, the company is implementing Phase II of the HDPHARMA EU Plant
Project: “Construction of 02 new pharmaceutical lines, including Powder Injection and
Beta-lactam Antibiotic Cephalosporin Capsules, meeting EU-GMP standards,” scheduled
for completion in 2025.

Dear General Meeting,

The year 2024 has once again been challenging due to intense competition, complex

global political fluctuations, a global economic downturn, natural disasters, etc. Despite



these difficulties, the Board of Directors and the Executive Board have made every effort
to promptly implement appropriate solutions and strategies, resulting in a post-tax profit
growth of 28.85% compared to 2023. This achievement has ensured the protection of
shareholders’ rights, as well as stabilized employment and income for the workforce.

III. EVALUATION OF THE COOPERATION BETWEEN THE
SUPERVISORY BOARD, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE GENERAL

DIRECTOR, AND THE SHAREHOLDERS
In 2024, the Supervisory Board closely cooperated with the Board of Directors and

the General Director in performing its assigned duties. The Board of Directors and the
General Director provided favorable conditions for the Supervisory Board to execute its
tasks by supplying all relevant information and documents regarding the company’s
operations. The Board collaborated in inspecting and supervising the activities at branches
and the overall management of the company, thereby enabling timely resolution of issues
to enhance management efficiency and ensure full compliance with state regulations.

During 2024, the Supervisory Board did not receive any comments or
recommendations from shareholders. It participated fully in the Board of Directors’
meetings concerning the management and operations of the company. The
recommendations of the Supervisory Board were considered and implemented by the
Board of Directors and the General Director to safeguard the company's interests and
ensure compliance with legal provisions.

The Board of Directors provided strict direction and supervision over the company’s
business operations. The General Director executed his functions and responsibilities in
accordance with the Enterprise Law and the current Articles. Timely implementation of
resolutions and decisions from the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of
Directors was observed, with regular reports submitted to the Board for guidance when
necessary.

The cooperation among the Supervisory Board, the Board of Directors, the General
Director, and the shareholders has been based on the principle of ensuring the company’s
stability and sustainable development while protecting shareholders’ rights in accordance
with the law and the Company’s Articles.

IV. PLAN OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE SUPERVISORY BOARD IN 2025

- Monitor the implementation of resolutions approved by the General Meeting of

Shareholders.



- Supervise compliance with laws, the Company’s Articles, and internal regulations
in the company’s management and operations.

- Monitor the financial situation, capital structure, cash flow management,
operational efficiency, debt servicing capabilities, and the utilization, management, and
preservation of capital.

- Review quarterly, semi-annual, and annual financial statements.

- Verify the reasonableness, legality, accuracy, and prudence in the management
and operation of business activities.

- Inspect and supervise the establishment of cost standards.

- Oversee the effectiveness of investment projects, bidding processes, and
procurement.

- Monitor the purchase and sale of raw materials, auxiliary materials, semi-finished
products, finished products, and other goods.

- Supervise the implementation of recommendations from inspection teams and
independent audits (if any).

- Cooperate in inspecting and supervising internal audit activities; review and
evaluate the effectiveness of the internal control system, risk management, and early
warning mechanisms to enhance internal controls.

- Carry out other tasks assigned to the Supervisory Board in accordance with the
provisions of the Enterprise Law.

V. PROPOSALS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

In order for the company to achieve the targets for 2025 as approved by the General
Meeting of Shareholders, and to minimize errors and risks during the operation of its
business activities, the Supervisory Board hereby makes the following recommendations:

1. Continuously enhance management and operations to ensure optimal conditions
and fully leverage the capabilities of the executive team, so that the company develops
steadily and meets or exceeds the production, business, and profit targets approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders, thereby maximizing the legal benefits for both the

company and its shareholders.

2. Continue to improve the existing systems of processes and regulations in line
with the Enterprise Law, the Company’s Articles, and other applicable legal provisions,

ensuring that internal documents are appropriate and the business operations are effective.



3. Strengthen and tighten the supervision of quality control for raw materials,
auxiliary materials, semi-finished products, and finished products.

4. Continuously upgrade and modernize machinery and equipment on the
production line to increase productivity and improve product quality.

5. Enhance the development of the supply and sales systems, and further intensify
the supervision of sales in accordance with established regulations; develop appropriate
business strategies when introducing products to the market.

6. Place greater emphasis on and enhance professional capabilities in product
research and development.

7. Develop a suitable plan to fully exploit the production capacity of the
HDPHARMA EU plant, especially for products with competitive advantages from the EU-
GMP certified production line.

8. Expand the export market for goods to additional countries worldwide.

Dear Shareholders,

The above constitutes the report on the performance of the Supervisory Board in
2024. At today’s 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the Supervisory Board
respectfully presents this report.

On behalf of the Supervisory Board, I sincerely thank all shareholders for their
continued trust and support over the past year.

My sincere thanks also go to the Board of Directors, the General Director, and all
departments, workshops, and branches for their cooperation with the Supervisory Board in
fulfilling the tasks assigned by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

[ wish all representatives and shareholders good health, happiness, and success, and
I wish the company continued development and a successful meeting!

Thank you very much!

Recipients: On behalf of the Supervisory Board,
- General Meeting of Shareholders;

- Board of Directors, Executive Board of the
Company;

- Supervisory Board,

- For filing with the General Meeting

Organizing Committee.
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S6/No.: 01/Ttr — HDQT

TO TRINH SO 01
V/v Thong qua Béo cdo hoat dong dong cia HPQT, BKS niim 2024; Béo cao
hoat dong SX - KD nim 2024 va ké hoach SX — KD nim 2025
PROPOSAL NO. 01
Re: Approval of the 2024 Activity Report of the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Board; the 2024 Business Operations Report and the 2025 Business
Plan.

Kinh giri: Pai hoi ddng cb dong Cong ty Cb phin Dwoc Vit tu'y té Hai Duong

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical
Materials Joint Stock Company

- Cdn cik Ludt Doanh nghiép 56 59/2020/QH14 ng&y 17/5/2020-

dong cé déng thmmg nién nam 2024 z.‘hong qua ngay 01/04/2024;
- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;
- Pursuant to the Charter of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint

Stock Company as approved by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on
April 1, 2024.

Ho61 df’ing quan tri kinh trinh Dai hoi déng ) déng cong ty xem xét thong qua
ndi dung sau:

- Béo cdo hoat dong ctia Hbi dong quan tri ndm 2024;
- Béo c4o hoat ddng San xuét kinh doanh nam 2024 va ké hoach nim 2025;
- Béo céo hoat dong ctia Ban Kiém soat nim 2024,

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for consideration and approval of the following matters:

The 2024 Activity Report of the Board of Directors;
The 2024 Business Operations Report and the 2025 Business Plan;
The 2024 Activity Report of the Supervisory Board.
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Kinh trinh Dai hdi dong cb dong cong ty xem xét thdng qua.

Xin tran trong cam on!

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration
and approval.

Sincerely,

Thank you!
Noi nhin/Recipients: TM. HOI PONG QUAN TRI
- Nhu trén/As stated above; > '
- HBQT, Ban Gb, Ban KS/ CHU TICH
Board of Directors, Executive
Board, Supervisory Board,; ON BEHALF OF
- Luu TC-HC, TCKT.
To be archived by: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Administration & Human CHAIRMAN
Resources Dept, Finance &
Accounting Dept. W ‘

CHU TICH HBQT
NGUYEN TRUNG VIET
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S6/No.: 02/Ttr — HDQT

TO TRINH SO 02
V/v Théng qua Béo co tai chinh nim 2024 da dwgc kiém toan
PROPOSAL NO. 02
Re: Approval of the Audited 2024 Financial Statements

Kinh giri: Pai hoi ddng cb dong Cong ty C6 phan Duoc Vat tuy té Hai Duong

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical
Materials Joint Stock Company

- Can ctt Ludt Doanh nghiép sé 59/2020/QH14 ngay 17/6/2020;

- Cdn cir vao Piéu I¢ Céng ty Cé phén Duwoc Vit tu y té Hdi Duwong duoc Dai hoi dcﬁng
c6 déng thuong nién nam 2024 théng qua ngay 01/04/2024,

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;

- Pursuant to the Charter of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical and Medical Equipment Joint
Stock Company, as approved by the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on
April 1, 2024.

Hbi ddng quén tri kinh trinh Dai hoi dbng c6 dong cong ty xem xét thong qua Bao cdo
tai chinh nim 2024 di duoc Chi nhanh Céng ty TNHH kiém toan va Thim dinh gia Viét
Nam tién hanh kidm ton tudn theo cac Chudn muc ké todn Viét Nam, dugc Ban kiém sodt
Cong ty kiém tra va da dugc Hoi ddng quan tri CTCP Dugc Vattuy t& Hai Duong cong bd
cong khai theo quy dinh. C4c Bdo cdo tai chinh nam 2024 da duoc kiém to4n bao gdm:

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders
for consideration and approval of the 2024 Financial Statements, which have been audited
by Vietnam Auditing and Valuation Company Limited (Branch) in compliance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards. These financial statements have been reviewed by the
Supervisory Board and publicly disclosed by the Board of Directors as required.

(1) Béo céo cua Ban Giam doc

(2) Béo c4o cia Kiém toan vién

(3) Bang Can ddi ké todn tai ngay 31/12/2024

(4) Béo cdo Két qua hoat dong kinh doanh nam 2024
(5) Béo cao Luu chuyén tién t& nam 2024

(6) Thuyét minh Béo cdo tai chinh nim 2024

2 ®
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MEETING 2025

The audited 2024 financial statements include:

(1)
2)
3)
)
()
(6)

Report of the Executive Board

Report of the Auditor

Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2024
Income Statement for 2024

Cash Flow Statement for 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements for 2024

Trong d6, ¢6 mot so chi tiéu co ban:

Where, a number of major indicators are presented.

BAO CAO TAI CHINH TOM TAT
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DVT: Dong
Unit: VND
So dw So6 dw
Tén chi tiéu cudi nim dau nim
Indicators Year-end balance Beginning
balance

A - TAI SAN NGAN HAN
CURRENT ASSETS

341.148.607.589

266.583.170.936

1. Tién va cac khoadn twong dwong tién
Cash and cash equivalents

31.419.168.182

25.418.100.057

2. Cic khoan phai thu ngiin han
Short-term receivables

180.755.628.545

135.831.193.325

Inventories

3. Hang ton kho

127.909.053.084

104.353.518.072

4. Tai san ngin han khic
Other current assets

1.064.757.778

1.002.065.649

B TAI SAN DAI HAN
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

305.237.748.766

312.380.892.842

Fixed assets

1. Tai sdn co dinh

277.938.572.145

294.215.719.104

1.1. Taisan cb dinh hiru hinh
Tangible fixed assets

259.687.221.789

275.964.368.748

- Nguyén gia
Original cost

481.416.768.768

470.820.088.025

- Gi4 tri hao mon luy ké (*)
Accumulated depreciation value (¥)

(221.729.546.979)

(194.855.719.277)

1.2. Tai san cd dinh vo hinh
Intangible fixed assets

18.251.350.356

18.251.350.356

- Nguyén gia
Original cost

25.557.287.846

25.557.287.846

- Gié tri hao mon luy ké (¥)

(7.305.937.490)

(7.305.937.490)
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Accumulated depreciation value (*)

1.3. Chi phi xiy dung co ban d¢ dang
Construction in progress (CIP) cost

24.432.507.459

10.635.029.498

2. Cic khoan dau tuw tai chinh dai han
Long-term financial investments

0

0

3. Taisan dai han khac
Other non-current assets

2.866.669.162

7.530.144.240

TONG TAI SAN

TOTAL ASSETS 646.386.356.355 | 578.985.769.945
C - NO PHAI TRA
LIABILITIES 192.127.190.710 | 158.843.641.139

I. No ngin han
Short-term liabilities

186.108.895.749

156.612.592.379

1. Phai tra ngudi ban
Accounts payable to suppliers

63.913.046.095

47.347.613.820

2. Nguoi mua tra tién trude
Advances from customers

27.011.433.156

11.778.900.004

3. Thué va cac khoan phai ndp Nha nuéc
Taxes and payables to the government

7.152.037.955

2.550.168.386

4, Phai tra nguoi lao dong
Payables to employees

4.869.401.998

1.111.462.920

5. Chi phi phai tra ngén han
Short-term accrued expenses

428.162.066

474.547.567

6. Doanh thu chua thuc hién ngén han
Short-term unearned revenue

3201.934.270

836.867.098

7. Phai tra ngén han khac
Other short-term payables

7.182.181.347

5.000.401.347

8. Vay va ng thué tai chinh ngan han
Short-term borrowings and finance lease
liabilities

65.925.328.072

80.569.098.470

9. Qui khen thudng phic loi
Bonus and welfare fund

6.428.370.790

6.950.551.124

II No dai han
Long-term liabilities

6.018.294.961

2.231.048.760

1. Vay va no thué tai chinh dai han
Long-term borrowings and finance lease
liabilities

6.002.713.990

2.205.871.535

2. Qui phét trién khoa hoc va cong nghé
Science and technology development fund

15.580.971

23.1Y77.227

D - VON CHU SO HUU
OWNER’S EQUITY

454.259.165.645

420.135.110.449

1. Vbn gop cua chi sé hitu
Owner's contributed capital

279.473.190.000

203.996.300.000

2. Quy dau tu phat trién
Development investment fund

124.594.214.888

174.594.214.888

“ =il
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3. Loi nhuén sau thué chua phan phdi
Undistributed after-tax profit

50.191.780.757

41.544.595.561

+ Lo1 nhuédn sau thué chua phan phéi nam trudc
Undistributed after-tax profit of previous years

9.870.172.861

10.268.002.632

+ Loi nhuén sau thué chwra phan ph6i ndm nay
Undistributed after-tax profit of the current year

40.321.607.896

31.276.592.929

TONG NGUON VON
TOTAL CAPITAL RESOURCES

646.386.356.355

578.985.769.945

BAO CAO KET QUA HOAT PONG SAN XUAT KINH DOANH

INCOME STATEMENT (STATEMENT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE)

PVT: Dong
Unit: VND
STT CHI TIEU ¥ 3
NO INDICATOR NAM 2024 NAM 2023

Doanh thu ban hang hoa, dich vu

Revenue from sales of goods and services

668.056.188.242

616.251.015.860

, | Céc khoan gidm trix doanh thu 3.084.479.448 1.508.279.922
Deductions from revenue

g |Doanbituthun 665.001.708.794 |  614.742.735.938
Net revenue
Gia vn hang ban

4 Costof goods il 484.770.265.987 426.688.430.719
Loi nhuan gdp ban HHoéa va dich vu

5 | Gross profit from sales of goods and 210.231.442.807 188.054.305.219
services

g | Doanh thu tirhogt dhng €1 chink. 633.188.787 426.708.493
Financial income

4 | Chiphiti chinh 6.255.488.148 8.539.743.135
Financial expenses

g | Chipnthin emg 74.149.536.551 |  68.644.819.855
Selling expenses

o | Chiphi quinly doanh nghicp 81.814.791.647 |  72.660.901.541
General and administrative expenses
Loi nhuén thuéan tir hoat dong SX- KD

10 Nerproﬁtﬁ'om Lt ol NG 48.644.815.248 38.635.549.181

g1 |Thunhipkhéc 2.152.468.731 892.870.536
Other income

rg | Shiphikhee 8.775.306 36.500.000
Other expenses
Loi nhuan khac "

13 Other profit 2.143.693.425 856.370.536

14 | Tong loi nhuédn ké toan trudc thué 50.788.508.673 39.491.919.717
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Total accounting profit before tax
15 | Chi phi thué thu nhap doanh nghiép 10.179.727.977 7.977.849.788
Corporate income tax expense
g | Lobuhudnsan.due ftm dhap DN 40.608.780.696 |  31.514.069.929
Net profit after corporate income tax
17 Lii co ban/ 01 cb phiéu 1453 1128
Basic earnings per share

Nam 2024, Cong ty da tang vén didu 16 tir thing du von cb phf:in va loi nhuan sau thué
chua phan phdi. Vi vy 1ai co ban trén ¢b phiéu cling ky nam trude da duoc diéu chinh lai
theo s6 c¢b phiéu phét hanh thém. Viéc didu chinh hdi t theo chuén muc ké toan Viét Nam
1am cho 13i co ban trén ¢ phiéu nim trude giam tir: 1.545 dong/ cb phiéu xudng con: 1.128
ddng/ cb phiéu.

In 2024, the company increased its charter capital from share premium and
undistributed after-tax profit. As a result, the basic earnings per share (EPS) of the same
period last year were adjusted to reflect the additional issued shares. The retrospective
adjustment, in accordance with Vietmamese accounting standards, reduced the previous
year's basic EPS from 1,545 VND per share to 1,128 VND per share.

Kinh trinh Dai hoi ddng cd déng cong ty xem xét théng qua.
Xin trin trong cam on!

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and
approval.

Sincerely,
Noi nhin/Recipients: TM. HQI PONG QUAN TRI
- Nhu trén/4s stated above; CH["J TICH

- HDQT, Ban Gb, Ban KS/
Board of Directors, Executive Board,

Supervisory Board,; ON BEHALF OF

- Luu TC-HC, TCKT.
To be archived by: Administration & Human BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Resources Dept, Finance & Accounting CHAIRMAN
Dept.

CHU TICH HDQT
NGUYEN TRUNG VIET
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S6/No.: 03/Ttr — HDQT o )
TO TRINH SO 03

V/v: Thong qua Phwong an phan phdi lgi nhuén nim 2024
va du toan tai chinh nam 2025
PROPOSAL NO. 03
Re: Approval of the 2024 Profit Distribution Plan and the 2025 Financial
Budget

Kinh giri: Dai hoi ddng cb dong Cong ty C6 phin Duoc Vit tuy té Hai Duong

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical
Materials Joint Stock Company

- Can ctt Lut Doanh nghiép s6 59/2020/QH14 ngay 17/6/2020;

_ Cin ctt vao Didu 1 Cong ty Cb phan Dugc Vit tu y t& Hai Duong dugc Pai hoi
ddng cb dong thudng nién nim 2024 théng qua ngay 01/04/2024;

- Can ctr vao két qua SX - KD ciia Cong Ty CP Dugc Vit tu y té Hai Duong trong
nim 2024 va quy dinh v& ty 18 trich 1ap cac quy theo Diéu 1& Cong ty,

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;

- Pursuant to the Charter of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint
Stock Company, as approved by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in
2024 on April 1, 2024,

- Pursuant to the business performance results of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical
Medical Materials Joint Stock Company in 2024 and the provisions on the
allocation ratio of funds as stipulated in the Company's Charter.

Hoi déng quén tri kinh trinh Pai hoi d6ng cb dong cong ty xem xét thong qua
Phuong 4n phan phéi loi nhudn nam 2024 va ké hoach nam 2025, nhu sau:

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for consideration and approval the 2024 Profit Distribution Plan and
the 2025 Financial Plan, as follows:

1. Phwong an phan phdi loi nhuin nim tai chinh 2024 va lgi nhuin nim
truéc chuyén sang.

Profit Distribution Plan for the Fiscal Year 2024 and Retained Earnings from
Previous Years

STT Chi tiéu Sé tién (ddng)
No Indicators Amount (VND)
Loi nhuin nam trude chua phan phdi chuyén sang
1 Undistributed Profit Carried Forward from Previous 9.870.172.861
Years
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Tbng loi nhuén sau thué thu nhap doanh nghiép nam
2 12024 40.608.780.696

Total After-Tax Profit for the Year 2024

Tra cb tirc ndm 2024 Ty 18 1a: 2,2% .
Hinh thic
_ Tra bing tién mat 2,2%:  6.148.409.740

Dividend Payment for 2024, rate: 2.2%
6.148.409.740

Form of Payment:
Cash payment at 2.2%: 6,148,409,740 VND

Tra thu lao cho thanh vién HPQT, BKS khong tham
gia diéu hanh nam 2024 quyét toan theo Diéu 18

Remuneration Payment for Non-Executive Members of
4 | the Board of Directors (BOD) and the Supervisory 406.087.800
Board (SB) in 2024, settlement in accordance with the
Company's Charter

Téng loi nhuén con lai chua phan phéi

5 | Total Remaining Undistributed Profit 43.924.456.017
(5=1+2-3-4)
Tbng loi nhuin chua phan phéi chuyén sang nim sau
6 | Total Undistributed Profit Carried Forward to the 43.924.456.017
Next Year

Cong ty sé thuc hién tra cb tic nam 2024 bing tién mat cho céc ¢ dong theo nghi
quyét ctia Dai hoi ddng cd dong nam 2025 dé ra, sb tién la: 6.148.409.740 dong, tir
ngudn loi nhudn chua phén phdi nam 2024 va nim trude chuyén sang, c6 trén béo
c4o tai chinh 14p ngay 31/12/2024 da dugc kiém toan, tuong duong véi ty 1€ 1a: 2,2%
(01 ¢é phiéu dwoc nhdn 220 dong ).

The company will distribute the 2024 dividends in cash to shareholders in
accordance with the resolution of the 2025 General Meeting of Shareholders. The
total amount to be distributed is 6,148,409,740 VND, sourced from undistributed
profits from 2024 and previous years, as recorded in the audited financial
statements as of December 31, 2024. This corresponds to a dividend rate of 2.2%,
which means each share will receive 220 VND.

- N\

Yoy
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2. Du toan tai chinh nidm 2025

Financial Budget for 2025

- (Gia tri san luong san xut: 476 ty déng, trong do:
Production Output Value: 476 billion VND, including:

TT Tén don vi Pon vi Chi tiéu
No Production line tinh Giao
Unit Assigned
target
Phan xudng Cao nudc Ty ddng "
1 5
Herbal extract Billion
Phan xuéng Kem md nudc ,my phaim Ty dong .
2 22,
Cream, ointment, solution, cosmetic Billion
3 | Phén xuong Nang mém Ly dong 100
Soﬁgel Billion
4 | Phan xuéng Tiém Tra mét 15 S0 15
Billion

Injectables, ophthalmic

Ty dong

s | Phan xuong Vién (Nha mdy tai 102 Chi Lang) - 90
OSD (102 Chi Lang Plant) Bitlion
) Phéan xudng Vién 1 - EU Ty dong "
OSD line 1 — EU Billion
, Phén xuéng Vién 2 — WHO Ty dong .y
OSD line 2 — WHO Billion :
5 Phén xudng Ong udng (Thiy tinh) Ty dong "
Oral solution in glass ampoules Billion
CONG
476
TOTAL

- Doanh thu: 840 ty déng, Gom doanh thu ndi bd: 10 ty dong va Doanh thu ban
cho khach hang: 830 ty dong
Trong do :
+ Doanh thu hang kinh doanh thuong mai: 249 ty, chiém 30%
+ Doanh thu hang céng ty san xuat: 581 ty, chiém 70%
- Lai gbp: 200 ty
- Du kién loi nhuan sau thué 1a: 38.000.000.000 dong.

el & N =v= =0
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- Revenue: 840 billion VND, including, internal revenue: 10 billion VND, revenue
from sales to customers: 830 billion VND

Breakdown:
+ Revenue from trading goods: 249 billion VND (30%)
+ Revenue from company-manufactured products: 581 billion VND (70%,)

- Gross profit: 200 billion VND
- Projected after-tax profit: 38,000,000,000 VND (38 billion VND)

- Du kién phéan phéi loi nhuén sau thué ctia nam 2025:
+ Trich lgp vao qui dau tw phdt trién theo diéu Ié cong ty va nghi quyét dai
héi dong cé dong.
+ Trd ¢6 tike bing tién cho cdc cé dong du kién mikc tir 2% dén 6%.

- Projected Distribution of After-Tax Profit for 2025:

+ Allocation to the Development Investment Fund in accordance with the
company's charter and the resolution of the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

+ Dividend payment to shareholders in the form of cash, with an expected
rate ranging from 2% to 6%.

Trén day la ndi dung phuong an phan phéi loi nhuén ndm tai chinh 2024 va ké
hoach loi nhuén va phan phéi loi nhuan cho ndm tai chinh 2025, kinh trinh Dai hoi
ddng cb dong thudng nién 2025 xem xét thong qua.

Xin tran trong cam on!

The above outlines the profit distribution plan for the fiscal year 2024 and the
profit plan and distribution for the fiscal year 2025. Respectfully submitted to the
2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval.

Sincerely,

~ By~ SN

\=\ =
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Noi nhan/Recipients: TM. HOI PONG QUAN TRI

- Nhu trén/As stated above; =

- HDQT, Ban G, Ban KS/ CHU TICH

Board of Directors, Executive ON BEHALF OF

Board, Supervisory Board; BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- Luu TC-HC, TCKT.

To be archived by: CHAIRMAN

Administration & Human
Resources Dept, Finance &
Accounting Dept.

CHU TICHHBQT
NGUYEN TRUNG VIET
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S8/No.: 04/Ttr — HDQT

TO TRINH SO 04
V/v Thong qua chi tra thii lao cho HDQT, BKS niam 2024 va dé xuat nim 2025
PROPOSAL NO. 04
Regarding the Approval of Remuneration for the Board of Directors (BOD)
and Supervisory Board (SB) for 2024 and Proposal for 2025

Kinh giri: Pai hdi ddng cb dong Cong ty C6 phin Duge Vit tuy té Hai Duong

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical
Materials Joint Stock Company

- Cén cir Ludt Doanh nghiép s6 59/2020/QH14 ngay 17/6/2020;

- Cén cik vao Diéu lé Céng ty Cé phcfn Duwoe Vit tuy té Hai Duong duoc Dai hoi
dong c6 dong thwong nién nam 2024 théng qua ngay 01/04/2024;

- Cén cit vao két qud SXKD ciia Cong Ty C8 Phan Duge Vit tw y té Hai Duong
trong nam 2024 da dwoc kiém todn.

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;

- Pursuant to the Charter of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint
Stock Company approved by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on
April 1, 2024;

- Pursuant to the audited business performance results of Hai Duong
Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock Company for the year 2024.

Hbi ddng quan tri kinh trinh Dai hoi dong cb dong cong ty xem xét thdng qua
quyét toan chi tra thi lao cho HPQT, BKS nam 2024 va d@ xuét nim 2025, nhu sau:
The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of

Shareholders for consideration and approval the finalization of remuneration

payments for the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board in 2024, along with

the proposal for 2025, as follows:

1. Thi lao HPQT, BKS theo diéu 1 quyét toan trong nim 2024
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Remuneration for the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board

finalized in 2024 as stipulated in the Company Charter.

- S6 luong thanh vién Hoi dong quan tri ndm 2024 1a 3 thanh vién

- S6 luong thanh vién Ban kiém soat ndm 2024 1a 3 thanh vién
- Téng s6 loi nhuan sau thué thu nhap doanh nghiép: 40.608.780.696 dong
- Thu lao cho HDQT la: 1.218.263.400 dong; Tuong dwong 3% loi nhuén

sau thué ndm 2024. Cu thé :
- Number of members of the Board of Directors in 2024: 3 members

- Number of members of the Supervisory Board in 2024: 3 members

- Total profit after corporate income tax: VND 40,608, 780,696
- Remuneration for the Board of Directors: VND 1,218,263,400, equivalent
to 3% of the after-tax profit for 2024, detailed as follows:

Thu lao ndm 2024
2LE Ho va tén Chirc vu (dang-)
No Nismre Pisition Remuneration for
2024
) } (VND)
Ong Nguyén Trung Viét Chu tich HBQT
: Mr Nguyen Trung Viet Chairman of the Board 6057800
. x . Thanh vién HDQT- TGP
2 BaNeyca. L .Tu A Member of the Board— 406.087.800
Myrs Nguyen Thi Tu Anh _
General Director
Thanh vién HDQT khong
Ong Tran Phiic Duong tham gia diéu hanh
- My Tran Phuc Duong | Non-executive Member of Ly
the Board of Directors
Cong
Total 1.218.263.400

_ Thi lao cho BKS 14 : 406.087.800 dong ; Tuong duong 1% loi nhuén sau

thué nam 2024. Cu thé:
Remuneration for the Supervisory Board: VND 406,087,800, equivalent to

1% of the after-tax profit for 2024, detailed as follows:
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Thu lao nam 2024
oI1 Ho va tén Chire vu (dong')
No N Positio Remuneration for
ame osition 2024
” (VND)
. R Trudng Ban Kiém Soat
Ba Pham Thi Thuy :
1 Mps Pham Thi Thiuy Head of the Supervisory 135.362.600
Board
" x : Thanh vién BKS
2 Ba hignyen Th;_Hu’cmg L Member of the Supervisory 135.362.600
Mrs Nguyen Thi Huong Lan
Board
A Xt Thanh vién BKS
3 gt K.lm . Member of the Supervisory 135.362.600
Mr Tran Kim Cuong
Board
Cong
Total 406.087.800

Nhu vy khoan chi thi lao HPQT va BKS nam 2024 da thyc hién ding dinh

muc chi tra theo Diéu 1€ cong ty.

Thus, the remuneration payments to the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Board for 2024 have complied with the limits stipulated in the

Company Charter.
2. Mikc thi lao dw kién chi tra trong nim 2025
Proposed remuneration for 2025

Cin ctr vao diéu 18 cong ty di duoc dai hoi théng qua va két qua kinh doanh

cua nam 2024.
- Thii lao cho HPQT 12 3% loi nhudn sau thué thu nhép doanh nghiép

- Thu lao cho BKS la 1% lgi nhuén sau thué thu nhap doanh nghiép

Based on the Company Charter approved by the General Meeting and the
business performance results of 2024:

- Remuneration for the Board of Directors is 3% of after-tax profit.
- Remuneration for the Supervisory Board is 1% of after-tax profit.
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Trén day la nd1 dung két qua chi tra thu lao cho HPQT, BKS ndm 2024 va
ké hoach tht lao nam 2025, kinh trinh Pai h¢i dong c6 dong thuong nién 2025
xem xét va phé duyét.

The above content outlines the remuneration payments made to the Board of
Directors and the Supervisory Board for 2024, along with the proposed
remuneration plan for 2025, respectfully submitted to the Annual General Meeting

of Shareholders 2025 for consideration and approval.

Xin tran trong cam on!

Sincerely thank you!
Noi nhin/Recipients: TM. HOI PONG QUAN TRI
- Nhu trén/As stated above; -
_HPQT, Ban GD, Ban KS/ CHU TICH
Board of Directors, Executive Board, ON BEHALF OF
Supervisory Board,; BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- Luu TC-HC, TCKT.
To be archived by: Administration & Human CHAIRMAN

Resources Dept, Finance & Accounting Dept

CHU TiCH HBQT
NGUYEN TRUNG VIET
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S6/No.: 05/Ttr — HDQT

TO TRINH SO 05
V/v Thong qua viéc lwra chon don vi kiém toan BCTC nim 2025
PROPOSAL NO. 05
Re: Approval of the selection of an audit firm for the 2025 financial statements

Kinh giri: Pai hoi ddng c6 dong Cong ty Cb phin Duwgc Vit tw y té Hai Dwong

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical
Materials Joint Stock Company

- Can cit Ludt Doanh nghiép 56 59/2020/0H14 ngay 17/6/2020;

- Cén cir vao Diéu 1¢ Céng ty Ccé phcfn Dueoc Vit tw y té Hai Duong dwoc Pai hoi

dong cé dong thuong nién ndm 2024 thong qua ngay 01/4/2024, ,/'; 3
- Cdn cik vao tinh hinh thue té cia Céng ty, {;j’f";'f
- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020; \"I"Q\jf\'
Q.

- Pursuant to the Charter of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical and Medical Materials
Joint Stock Company, approved by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
on April 1, 2024;

- Based on the actual situation of the Company,

Hbi dong Quan tri kinh trinh Pai hoi ddng c6 dong cong ty xem xét thong qua
vé viée lya chon don vi kiém todn BCTC niam 2025 nhu sau:

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for consideration and approval of the selection of an audit firm for the
2025 financial statements, as follows:

1. Tiéu thirc Iwa chon
Selection criteria
- La don vi kiém toan doc 1ap c6 uy tin, dugc UBCKNN va Bo Tai chinh chép

thuén kiém toan cho cac cac cong ty dai chung;
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La don vi kidm toén c6 ddi ngfi kiém toan vién trung thue, dé cao dao dic
nghé nghiép, c6 trinh do cao, nhiéu kinh nghiém nham dam bao chit lugng
kiém todn béo cdo tai chinh;

Chi phi kidm toan hop 1y, phtt hop v6i ni dung, pham vi va tién do kiém
toan do Cong ty yéu cau.

Must be a reputable independent audit firm approved by the State Securities
Commission (SSC) and the Ministry of Finance to audit public companies.
Must have a team of auditors who are honest, uphold professional ethics,
highly qualified, and experienced to ensure high-quality financial statement
audits.

Audit fees should be reasonable and aligned with the audit scope, content,
and timeline required by the Company.

Danh sich mot s6 don vi kiém todn

List of some audit firms

Chi nhanh c6ng ty TNHH kiém toan va dich vu tin hoc MOORE AISC;
Céng ty TNHH kiém toén An Viét;

Cong ty TNHH KPMG;

Céng ty TNHH kiém toan va thim dinh gia Viét Nam;

Hodc céac don vi kiém todn du diéu kién khac tai thoi diém cong ty ¢6 nhu cau

lua chon.

Moore AISC Auditing and Informatics Services Company Limited — Branch

Office;

An Viet Auditing Company Limited;

KPMG Company Limited;

Vietnam Auditing and Valuation Company Limited.

Or other qualified auditing firms available at the time when the selection is

needed.
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Hoi ddng quan tri xin kinh trinh Pai hoi ddng cb dong chip thuan vy quyén cho
Hoi dong quan tri truc tiép chon mot don vi kiém toan phu hop, dép tng duoc
nhitng yéu cau trén dé kiém toan Béo cdo tai chinh ndm 2025 ctia Cong ty.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval of the authorization of the Board of Directors to directly
select an audit firm that satisfles the above criteria to perform the audit of the
Company's 2025 financial statements.

Kinh trinh Dai hoi dong cb déng cong ty xem xét thong qua.

Xin tran trong cam on!

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval.

Sincerely thanks!

Ngﬁ nhf‘::f/Recipinnt.;: TM. HQI PONG QUAN TRI
- Nhu trén/As stated above, e

- HPQT, Ban GB, Ban KS/ CHU TICH

Board of Directors, Executive Board, ON BEHALF OF
Supervisory Board; BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- Luu TC-HC, TCKT.
To be archived by: Administration & Human
Resources Dept, Finance & Accounting Dept

CHAIRMAN
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Sé/No.: 06 /Ttr — HDQT
TO TRINH
Phwong an phat hanh cb phiéu dé tang von co phén tir ngudn von chii s& hiru
nim 2025

PROPOSAL
Plan for Issuing Shares to Increase Charter Capital from Owner's Equity in 2025

Kinh giri: Dai hoi dong cb dong Cong ty C6 phan Dugc Vit tw Y té Hai Duong

To the attention of: The General Meeting of Shareholders of Hai Duong
Pharmaceutical and Medical Materials JSC

Can cu:
Pursuant to:

- Luat Doanh nghiép sé 59/2020/QH14 ngay 17/6/2020 da dugc Quéc hoi Nudc Cong
Hoa X4 hoi Chu Nghia Viét Nam thong qua;

The Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020, passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam,

- Luét Chitng khoén s6 54/2019/QH14 ngay 26/11/2019 da dugc Quéc hoi Nude Cong
Hoa X3 hoi Cha Nghia Viét Nam thong qua;

The Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019, passed by the
National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam;

- Nghi dinh 155/2020/ND-CP ngay 31/12/2020 ciia Chinh Phit quy dinh chi tiét thi hanh
mdt s didu ctia Luat Ching Khoan;

Decree No. 155/2020/NB-CP dated December 31, 2020, of the Government detailing the
implementation of certain provisions of the Law on Securities;

- Thong tu sé 118/2020/TT-BTC ngay 31/12/2020 ciia Bo Tai Chinh huéng dan mot sd
ndi dung v& chao ban, phat hanh chimg khodn, chao mua cdng khai, mua lai c¢b phiéu,
dang ky cong ty dai ching va hity tu céch cong ty dai ching;

Circular No. 118/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020, of the Ministry of Finance
guiding certain aspects of securities offering, issuance, public tender offers, share
repurchase, public company registration, and public company delisting;

1




- Diéu 18 tb chirc va hoat dong cua Cong ty C6 phan Dugc Vattu Y té Hai Duong;

The Charter on the organization and operation of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical and
Medical Materials JSC;

- Bio cdo tai chinh ndm 2024 da dugc kiém toan cia Cong ty c¢b phan Duge Vattu Y té
Hai Duong.

The audited financial statements of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical and Medical Materials
JSC

for the year 2024.
Hoi ddng quan tri kinh trinh Dai hoi ddng cb dong Cong ty C6 phén Dugc Vit tu
Y té Hai Duong xem xét va phé duyét Phuwong én phat hanh cd phiéu dé tang vbn cb

phén tir ngudn von ch s¢ hitu nam 2025 v6i ndi dung chi tiét nhu sau:

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical and Medical Materials JSC for
consideration and approval of the Plan for Issuing Shares to Increase Charter Capital

from Owner's Equity in 2025, with the following detailed content:

L Phwong an phat hanh ¢b phiéu dé ting vén cb phén tir nguén von chii s& hitu
nam 2025
Plan for Issuing Shares to Increase Charter Capital from Owner's Equity in
2025

1. T6chirc phathanh | Cong ty C6 phan Duge Vat tu Y té Hai Duong.
Issuing organization | Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials JSC

2. Loai c6 phiéu C4 phiéu phd thong.
Type of shares Common shares

3. S6 lugng phat hanh
Number of shares to
be issued

muot bay cé phan).

hundred twenty seven shares).

8.048.827 ¢b phfc‘m (tam triéu, bén muoi tdm nghin, tam tram hai

8.048.827 shares (eight million forty eight thousand eight

4. Tong gia tri phat
hanh
Total issuance value

trdm bay muoi nghin déng)

two hundred seventy thousand dong).

80.488.270.000 (T4m muoi ty, bon trdm tdm muoi tdm triéu, hai

80.488.270.000 VND (eighty billion forty eighty eight million

5. Meénh gi4

Par Value 10.000 dong/co phiéu.

10.000 VND/share

]



6. Muc dich phéat hanh
Purpose of issuance

Tang vén diéu 1é cong ty bang hinh thirc phat hanh cd phiéu dé
tang von cd phan tir ngudn von chi s& hitu.

To increase the company's charter capital by issuing shares to
raise share capital from owner's equity.

7. Ngudn vbn phét hanh
Source of Issuance
Capital

Nguf“)n quy dau tur phat trién va loi nhuan sau thué chua phén
phdi tai thoi diém 31/12/2024 trén Béo cao tai chinh nam 2024
da duoc kiém todn ctia Cong ty C6 phan Duge vattuy té Hai
Duong.
Trong do:

- Quy dau tu phat trién: 45.000.000.000 dong

- Loi nhuén sau thué chua phén phbi: tdi da 35.488.270.000

dong.

The issuance capital will be sourced from the Development
Investment Fund and Undistributed After-Tax Profit as of
December 31, 2024, according to the audited financial
statements of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical and Medical
Materials JSC.

Details:

- Development Investment Fund. 45,000,000, 000 VND
- Undistributed After-Tax Profit: Up to 35,488,270,000
VND

8. DPoi tugng phét hanh
Issuance Recipients

C6 ddng hién hitu theo danh sach co dong tai ngay dang ky cudi
cung duoc hudng quyén nhan c¢b phiéu phét hanh tir ngudn von
chu s& hitu do VSDC théng bao.

Existing shareholders listed on the record date for entitlement
to shares issued from owner's equity, as announced by VSDC.

9. Ty 1& thuc hién
Ratio

100:28.8 (Cb dong so hiru 100 6 phan s& dugc nhén 28,8 co
phdn phét hanh thém).

100:28,8 (Shareholders owning 100 shares will receive 28,8
aa’dzrzonally issued shares)

10. Phuong 4n xir Iy ¢
phiéu 1é phdt sinh
(néu co)

Plan for Handling
Fractional Shares (if

any)

S6 lu(mg co pl’llel,l moi Co dong dugc nhan khi phat hanh co
phleu dé tang von cb phan tir ngudn von chu so hitu s& duoc
lam tron dén hang don vi theo nguyen thc 1am tron xudng. S6
cb phiéu 1é (phan thap phén) (néu c6) s& hiy bo, khong phat
hanh.

Vi du: C6 dong Nguygn Vin A sé hiru 182 ¢6 phiéu, c6 dong A
sé dugc nhdn cé phiéu phdt hanh thém duoc tinh nhy sau (182 :
100) x 28,8 = 52,41 c6 phzeu Cé déng Nguyén Vin A nhan
dwoe 52 ¢6 phiéu mdi (cé phiéu 1é 0,41 sé bi huy).

The number of shares each shareholder receives from the

-
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issuance of shares to increase charter capital from owner's |
equity will be rounded down to the nearest whole number. Any
fractional shares (decimal portions), if any, will be canceled
and not issued.

Example:

Shareholder Nguyen Van A owns 182 shares. The additional
shares received will be calculated as follows: (182 : 100) x

28, 8= 52,41 shares

Shareholder Nguyén Vin A will receive 52 new shares, and the
fractional 0,41 shares will be canceled.

11. Thoi gian thuc hién
du kién
Expected
Implementation
Timeline

Quy 11, 111/2025 sau khi dugc Dai hoi dong cb dong thong qua
va Uy ban Chimg khoan Nha nud¢c thong béo bing vin ban vé
viéc nhén dz:iy du tai liéu bao céo phat hanh ctia DHD.

02-03/2025, after approval by the General Meeting of
Shareholders and upon written confirmation from the State
Securities Commission regarding the receipt of the complete

issuance report documents from HDPHARMA.

II.  Ping ky chirng khoén va diang ky giao dich bd sung:

Securities registration and additional trading registration

Toan bo sé ¢b phiéu phat hanh d¢ ting von c6 phan tlr nguon von chi s¢ hiru nam

2025 sé& duoc ding ky chiing khoan va ding ky giao dich tai Téng Cong ty Luu ky va Bu

trir chimg khoan Viét Nam va S¢ Giao dich Chirng khoan Ha Noi, ngay sau khi hoan tat

viéc phat hanh phu hop v6i quy dinh phép luét.

All shares issued to increase charter capital from owner's equity in 2025 will be

registered for securities custody and additional trading at the Vietnam Securities

Depository and Clearing Corporation and the Hanoi Stock Exchange immediately after

the issuance is completed, in accordance with applicable legal regulations.

[II. Sira dbi didu 1&:

Amendment to the Charter

Sira doi cac ndi dung lién quan dén vén diéu 18, c6 phan, c6 phiéu tai Muc 1 Phu

luc 1 trong Piéu 1& td chirc va hoat dong cia cong ty cap nhét theo Vén diéu 1€ sau khi

hoan tit dot phat hanh cb phiéu.

The relevant provisions on charter capital, shares, and stocks is going to be

amended in Section 1, Appendix 1 of the company's Charter on organization and

b » ; [P0, e
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operation, updated to reflect the new charter capital after the completion of the share

issuance.

IV.

Uy quyén ciia Dai hoi ddng cb dong cho Hoi dong quan tri:
Authorization from the General Meeting of Shareholders to the Board of
Directors:
Trién khai phuong an phat hanh chi tiét, lua chon thoi diém phat hanh va thyc hién
céc thi tuc ding ky phat hanh dam bao tuén thi quy dinh cua phép luat.
Implement the detailed issuance plan, select the appropriate issuance timing, and
carry out the necessary registration procedures in compliance with legal
regulations.
Stra ddi c4c ndi dung lién quan dén vén didu 18, cb ph@in, co phiéu tai Muc 1 Phu luc
1 trong Diéu 1& t& chirc va hoat dong clia cong ty cdp nhat theo Vén diéu 1é sau khi
hoan tit dot phat hanh cb phiéu.

Amend the relevant provisions on charter capital, shares, and stocks in Section 1,
Appendix 1 of the company's Charter on organization and operation, updated to
reflect the new charter capital afier the completion of the share issuance.

Thue hién céc thi tuc dang ky kinh doanh véi S& ké hoach va Pau tu tinh Hai
Duong sau khi hoan tht dot phét hanh.

Complete the business registration procedures with the Hai Duong Department of
Planning and Investment after the issuance is finalized.

Hoan tAt thi tuc diang ky chimg khoén bd sung tai Tong Cong ty Luu ky va Bu tru
Chtng Khoan Viét Nam va dang ky giao dich ching khoan bd sung trén S& giao
dich Chirng khoan Ha N&i theo quy dinh phap luat hién hanh.

Complete the supplementary securities registration procedures with the Vietnam
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation and register additional securities
trading on the Hanoi Stock Exchange in accordance with current legal regulations.
Va céc cdng viéc khéac c6 lién quan.

Carry out any other related tasks as necessary.

Kinh trinh Dai hdi xem xét thong qua.

Xin trin trong cam on!

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting for consideration and approval.

Sincerely,

- e Ny ety
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TM. HOI PONG QUAN TRI
CHU TICH
ON BEHALF OF
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN

CHU TICH HPQT
NGUYEN TRUNG VIET




@HDPHARMA PAI HOI PONG CO PONG THUONG NIEN NAM 2025
| sice 197 4 ANNUAL GENERAL SHAREHOLDER MEETING 2025

S6/No.: 07/Ttr — HPQT

TO TRINH SO 07
V/v Thong qua Pinh hwéng phat trién Cong ty nim 2025
va nhitng nam tiép theo
PROPOSAL NO. 07
Re: Approval of the Company's Development Orientation for 2025 and the
Following Years

Kinh giti: Pai hoi dong cb ddng Cong ty C6 phian Duwgc Vat twy té Hai Dwrong

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical
Materials Joint Stock Company

- Czn cit Luat Doanh nghiép s6 59/2020/QH14 ngay 17/6/2020;
- Cin cir vao Didu 1& Céng ty Cé phin Dugc Vit tu Y té Hai Duong;
- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;

- Pursuant to the Charter of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint
Stock Company;

Hoi ddng quan tri kinh trinh Dai hoi ddng c¢b dong xem xét thong qua “Dinh
hudng phat trién nam 2025 va nhiing nim tiép theo ctia Cong ty Cb phan Dugc
Vit tu Y té Hai Duong”, cu thé nhu sau:

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for consideration and approval the "Development Orientation for
2025 and the Following Years of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials
Joint Stock Company", as detailed below:

1. Trién khai giai doan 03 du 4n Nha miay HDPHARMA tai Cam Thuong. Thoi
gian thuc hién, hinh thirc ddu tu day chuyén va quy md s& xéc dinh tiry vao tinh
hinh thuc té, do HPQT quyét dinh.
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2. Hop téc véi cac dbi téc, céc tip doan 16n ctia thé gisi dé ting trudng dot pha vé
doanh sd.

3. Nghién ciru tinh kha thi v& viéc hop tac lién doanh lién két hogc chuyén nhugng
tai san trén dAt v6i cac ddi tac.

1. Implement Phase 03 of the HDPHARMA Factory Project in Cém Thuwong. The
implementation timeline, investment model for the production line, and scale
will be determined based on the actual situation, as decided by the Board of
Directors.

2. Collaborate with global partners and major corporations to achieve
breakthrough revenue growth.

3. Assess the feasibility of joint ventures, partnerships, or asset transfer on the
land with potential partners.

Hoi ddng Quén tri kinh trinh Dai hoi ddng cb dong chap thuan va iy quyén cho
Hoi ddng Quén tri t& chirc trién khai céc ndi dung dinh huéng phét trién ciia Cong
ty néu trén.

Shareholders for approval and authorization to organize and implement the An \2\
. ; , T |
Company's development orientation as outlined above. -

Kinh trinh Dai hoi dong cd dong thudng nién xem xét thong qual

Xin tran trong cam on!

Respectfully submitted to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval!

Thank you very much!
TM. HQI PONG QUAN TRI
CHU TICH
ON BEHALF OF
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CcHU TICH HBQT
NGUYEN TRUNG VIET
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Sé/No.: 08/Ttr — HDQT

TO TRINH SO 08
V/v Théng qua viéc thuc hién niém yét c6 phiéu DHD
tai S¢ giao dich Chuing khoan Hé Chi Minh/ S6 giao dich chiing khodn Viét Nam

PROPOSAL NO. 08
Re: Approval for the Listing of DHD Shares
on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange / Vietnam Stock Exchange

Kinh giti: Dai hoi ddng cb dong Cong ty C6 phan Dugc Vat tury té Hai Dwong

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical
Materials Joint Stock Company

. Cén cir Ludt Doanh nghiép sé6 59/2020/QHI4 ngay 17/6/2020; Luat 56
03/2022/QH15 sira dsi, b6 sung mot s6 diéu Ludt Doanh nghiép;

- Cédn cw Ludt chitng khoan s6 54/2019/QHI4 ngay 26/11/2019; Ludt 6
56/2024/QHIS sira ddi, b6 sung mét s6 dieu ciia ludt chimg khodn;

- Cén cit Nghi dinh 155/2020/ND-CP ngay 31/12/2020 ctia Chinh phi quy dinh chi
tiét thi hamh mét sé diéu cia Ludt chimg khodn;

- Cén cir Thong tu s6 69/2023/TT-BTC ngay 15/11/2023 cua B¢ tai chinh sita doi,
bé sung mét sé diéu cia Thong tir s6 57/2021/TT-BTC ngay 12/07/2021;

- Quy ché niém yét va giao dich chiing khodn niém yét ciia Sé Giao dich chimg
khodn Viét Nam ban hanh theo Quyét dinh s6 17/0D-HDTV ngay 31/03/2022;

. Cén cik Didu 1é t8 chirc va hoat dong Cong ty C6 phan Duoc Vét tw Y té Hai
Duong (“DHD”);

- Tinh hinh thuc té ciia Céng ty C6 phan Duwgc Vit tu Y té Hai Duong.

Pursuant to:

- The Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH 14 dated June 17, 2020; Law No.
03/2022/QH15 amending and supplementing certain provisions of the Law on
Enterprises;
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- The Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019; Law No.
56/2024/QH15 amending and supplementing certain provisions of the Law on
Securities;

- Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020, of the Government

detailing the implementation of certain provisions of the Law on Securities;

Circular No. 69/2023/TT-BTC dated November 15, 2023, of the Ministry of

Finance amending and supplementing certain provisions of Circular No.

57/2021/TT-BTC dated July 12, 2021;

The Listing and Trading Regulations of the Vietnam Stock Exchange, issued under
Decision No. 17/QD-HDTV dated March 31, 2022;

The Charter on Organization and Operation of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical
Medical Materials Joint Stock Company (“DHD”);

The actual situation of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock

Company.

Dé khai thac tiém nang va loi thé clia cong ty dong thdi ndng cao hon trong viéc
quéang bé hinh anh, thuong hiéu, uy tin trén thi trudmg véi nha dau tu trong va ngoai nude
cling nhw ning cao ning lyc quén tri cong ty, Hoi ddng quan tri Cong ty C6 phan Duogc
Vit tu Y té Hai Duong kinh trinh Dai hdi dong c6 dong thudng nién nam 2025 thong qua
viée thyc hién niém yét co phiéu ctia Cong ty tai S giao dich ching khoan TP. Hb Chi
Minh/ S& giao dich chimg khoan Viét Nam theo ding quy dinh ctia phap luét nhu sau:

To leverage the company's potential and advantages while enhancing brand
promotion, reputation, and market presence among domestic and international investors,
as well as improving corporate governance capacity, the Board of Directors of Hai
Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock Company respectfully submits to
the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for approval the listing of the
Company's shares on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange / Vietnam Stock Exchange in
accordance with legal regulations, as follows:

1. Hiy ding ky giao dich (Upcom) ¢6 phiéu DHD va thuc hién ding ky niém
yét ¢b phiéu tai S¢ giao dich ching khoin TP. Hb Chi Minh/ S& giao dich chirng
khoan Viét Nam khi cong ty d4p tng dii diéu kién niém yét theo quy dinh phap lujt,
cu the nhw sau:

The cancellation of DHD share trading registration on UPCoM and the registration
for listing on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange / Vietnam Stock Exchange will be

ACA\

i T |
:E'”'_(QD

/

)
U
\‘--_f



@HDPHARMA PAI HOI PONG CO DPONG THUONG NIEN NAM 2025
\ SHCE 1961 4 ANNUAL GENERAL SHAREHOLDER MEETING 2025

carried out once the company meets the listing requirements as prescribed by law,

specifically as follows:

Tén ¢ phiéu: C6 phiéu Céng ty C6 phan Dugc Vattu Y té Hai Duong

Loai cb phiéu: Cb phiéu phd thong

Ma ¢ phidu: DHD

S8 luong cb phiéu hiy ding ky giao dich (Upcom) chuyén sang dang ky niém yét
tai S& giao dich ching khoan TP. HO Chi Minh/ S¢& giao dich chimg khoan Viét
Nam: Toan bd sb luong co phiéu DHD dé phét hanh tai thoi diém thuc hién dang
ky niém yet c6 phi€u tai So giao dich chimg khoan.

Thoi gian thuc hién: Du kién trong ndm 2025-2026.

Stock Name: Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock Company

Shares

Stock Type: Common Shares

Stock Code: DHD

Number of Shares to be Delisted from UPCoM and Registered for Listing on the
Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange / Vietnam Stock Exchange: The entire number of
issued DHD shares at the time of listing registration.

Implementation Timeline: Expected in 2025-2026.

11. Uy quyén cho Hgi Pong quan tri:

Authorization to the Board of Directors

Dai hoi ddng cb dong ty quyén cho Hoi ddng quan tri Cong ty:
- Quyét dinh thoi diém thuc hién; lya chon trién khai niém yét tai SO giao dich

chimg khoan TP. H6 Chi Minh/ S& giao dich chimg khoén Viét Nam khi Cong ty
dap tng du didu kién niém yét cb phiéu theo quy dinh ctia phép luat;

Quyét dinh va chi dao cic phong ban lién quan thuc hién thu tuc can thiét, hoan
thién hd so Hily dang ky giao dich (Upcom); thuc hién ding ky niém yét ¢b phiéu
DHD tai S& giao dich chimg khoan TP. Ho6 Chi Minh/ S& giao dich chimg khoan
Viét Nam; va Thu tuc dang ky dbi voi chimg khoén thay dbi san giao dich tai
Tdng cong ty Iuu ky va bu trir chiing khoan Viét Nam.

Quyét dinh tht ca céc van dé lién quan dén viéc thuc hién chuyén san giao dich c6
phiéu DHD tir déng ky giao dich (Upcom) sang dang ky niém yét tai S& giao dich
chimg khoan TP. H6 Chi Minh/ S¢ giao dich chimg khoan Viét Nam theo ding
quy dinh cta phép luat;
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- Lua chon thoi diém va x4c dinh gi4 c6 phicu vao ngay giao dich déu tién Niém yét
cb phiéu ...

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the Board of Directors to:

- Determine the execution timeline and decide on the listing of shares on the Ho Chi
Minh Stock Exchange / Vietnam Stock Exchange when the Company meets the
listing requirements as prescribed by law.

- Decide and direct relevant departments to carry out the necessary procedures,
including completing the application for delisting from UPCoM, registering for
listing of DHD shares on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange / Vietnam Stock
Exchange, and registering the securities transfer process with the Vietnam
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation.

- Make all decisions related to the transition of DHD shares from UPCoM trading
registration to official listing on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange / Vietnam Stock
Exchange in compliance with legal regulations.

- Select the appropriate timing and determine the stock price for the first trading
day of the listed shares.

Kinh trinh Dai hji dong c6 dong xem xét va biéu quyét thong qua!
Xin trdn trong cam on!

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for review and
approval!

Sincerely thanks!

TM. HOI PONG QUAN TRI
CHU TICH
ON BEHALF OF
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHAIRMAN

CHU TICHHBQT
NGUYEN TRUNG VIET
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HAI DUONG PHARMACEUTICAL MEDICAL MATERIALS
JOINT STOCK COMPANY
2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

PHIEU BIEU QUYET
VOTING FORM
MA CO PONG: DHDxxxx
SHAREHOLDER CODE: DHDxxxx

Ho va tén co déng / Full name of shareholder: .
S6 lugng co phan s& hitu / Number of shares owned ............ cb phén / shares
S6 lugng cb phan nhan Gy quyén / Number of authorized shares: ......... cd phan / shares
Tong s6 hrong ¢o phan dai dién / Total number of shares represented: ........... ¢6 phan /
shares
(Quy Co déng ddnh déu vao 6 Y kién lya chon theo timg Néi dung biéu quyét)
(Shareholder please tick an appropriate box for each Voting Content)

el Khoéng y
NOI DUNG Tén thanh Kll‘}’l‘;lgﬂ;‘a“ kién
CONTENT Approve Di No
isapprove .

opinion

Noi dung 01: T¢ trinh thong qua Béo cao hoat dong
ctia Hoi déng Quan tri, Ban Kiém soat niam 2024;

Bio c4o hoat déng san xuit kinh doanh nim 2024 va
ké hoach san xuét kinh doanh nim 2025 ] ] []
Content 01: The Board of Directors' and Supervisory
Board's 2024 Operational Report; 2024 Business and
Production Activity Report and 2025 Business and
Production Plan

Noi dung 02: T¢ trinh théng qua Béo cdo Tai chinh
niam 2024 da duoc kiém toan ] 1] i
Content 02: Approval of the audited 2024 Financial
Report

N9gi dung 03: T trinh théng qua Phuong an phan
phéi loi nhuan nim 2024 va du toan tai chinh nim
2025 [] [ ] []
Content 03: The 2024 profit distribution plan and
2025 financial budget

Noi dung 04: TO trinh théng qua chi tra thu lao cho
HDQT, BKS nam 2024 va dé xuat nam 2025

Content 04: Remuneration payment for the Board of ] 2 []
Directors and Board of Supervisors in 2024 and

proposal for 2025

No6i dung 05: T trinh théng qua viéc lya chon don vi [ ] ]

kiém toan BCTC nam 2025




Khong y

NOI DUNG T thaih | tlﬁgﬁfn kién
CONTENT Approve ; No
Disapprove %
opinion

Content 05: Selection of audit unit for 2025 financial
statements

Noi dung 06: To trinh phuong an phat hanh c6 phiéu
dé tang vén cb phan tir ngudn vén chi s& hitu nim
2025

Content 06: Proposal for share issuance plan to
increase equity capital from owner's equity in 2025

Noi dung 07: T trinh thong qua dinh hudng phéat
trién nim 2025 va nhitg nim tiép theo

Content 07: Development plan for 2025 and
following years

Noi dung 8: To trinh thong qua hiy dang ky giao
dich tai chimg khoan tai san UpCom, Dang ky niém
yét chimg khoén tai S& giao dich chimg khoan TP. Ho
Chi Minh

Content 8 Proposal to cancel the securities trading
registration at UpCom floor; Registration of
securities listing at Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange

Huwéng dan / Instructions:

Cb dong biéu quyét bang cach lua chon MOT trong cac phuong an: Tan thanh, Khong tan

thanh, Khéng y kién cho timg ndi dung biéu quyét.

Please vote by choosing ONE of the following options: Approve, Disapprove, No opinion

for each voting content.

Ngay 03 thang 4 nam 2025
April 03, 2025

cO PONG

SHAREHOLDER
(Ky va Ghi ré ho tén)
(Signature and full name)




CONG TY CO PHAN CONG HOA XA HOI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM

DUQC VAT TU Y TE HAI DUONG SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
HAI DUONG PHARMACEUTICAL Djc 1ap — Ty do — Hanh phiic
MEDICAL MATERIALS JSC. Independence — Liberty — Happiness
S6: ...... /2025/BB-DHDCD-DHD Hai Duong, ngay 03 thang 04 nam 2025
7 T /2025/BB-DHDCD-DHD Hai Duong, April 03, 2025

DU THAO/D T

BIEN BAN HOP
PAI HOI PONG CO PONG THUONG NIEN NAM 2025
CONG TY CO PHAN DUQC VAT TU Y TE HAI DUONG
MEETING MINUTES
2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
HAI DUONG PHARMACEUTICAL MEDICAL MATERIALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Tén doanh nghiép : Céng ty Cb phin Dwgc Vit tw Y té Hai Dwong
Business Name Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock
Company
Dia chi . 86 102 Chi Lang, phuomg Nguyén Trai, thanh phé Hai Duong,
Address tinh Hai Duong
No. 102 Chi Lang, Nguyen Trai ward, Hai Duong city, Hai
Duong province
Gidy chimg nhan . S5 0800011018 do S& K& hoach va Pau tu tinh Hai Duong cap
PKKD 14n dAu ngay 04/04/2003, cip thay dbi lan thi 21 ngay
Business Registration 07/06/2024
Licence Number 0800011018, first issued by the Depariment of Planning

and Investment of Hai Duong province on April 4, 2003, with
the 21st amendment issued on June 7, 2024.

Thoi gian hop . Bét dAu luc 08 gits 00 phut, ngay 03/04/2025

Meeting time Starts at 08:00, April 3, 2025

Dia diém hop - Trung tAm td chirc su kién Au Co (s 1A, phd Nguyén Hiru Cau,
Meeting venue phuong Ngoc Chau, thanh phb Hai Duong, tinh Hai Duong)

Au Co Event Center (No. 14, Nguyen Huu Cau Street, Ngoc
Chau Ward, Hai Duong City, Hai Duong Province)

Chuong trinh va - Theo Chuong trinh Dai hdi dong cb déng thudng nién nim 2025

ndi dung dai hdi da dugc Pai hdi déng cd dong thong qua

Meeting agenda According to the approved 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders Agenda

DIEN BIEN DAI HOI (theo trinh tir thoi gian) / MEETING PROCESS (in chronological order):

I. THU TUC KHAI MAC PAI HOI / OPENING PROCEDURES
—  Ban t6 chirc da thuc hién thu tuc ding ky du hop cho céc dai biéu t6i tham du Pai hoi dong c6



dong thudng nién ndm 2025 cua Cong ty C& phan Duoc Vit tu Y té Hai Duong.

The Organizing Committee completed the registration procedures for delegates to attend the

2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical

Materials Joint Stock Company.

_  Pai héi da nghe Ba Nguy&n Thi Huong Lan - Truéng Ban kiém tra tir céch dai biéu béo cdo két

qua tham tra tu cach dai biéy, cu thé:

The Congress listened to Mrs. Nguyen Thi Huong Lan - Head of the Delegate Eligibility

Examination Committee report on the results of the examination, specifically:

= Tai thoi diém khai mac Pai hoi luc 08 gio 00 phut, Dai hdi co: .... dai biéu du hop, dai dién
cho ...... cb phan, chiém .....% tdng sb cb phin c6 quyén biéu quyét.
At the opening time of the Meeting at 08:00, there were: .... delegates attending the meeting,
representing ..... shares, accounting for ....% of the total number of shares with voting
rights.

=  Czn ctr theo Luit doanh nghiép 2020, Piéu 18 t6 chirc va hoat dong ctia Cong ty, Pai hoi
ddng cb dong thuong nién nam 2025 cia Cong ty C6 phan Vat tw Y t& Hai Duong khai mac
Iic 08 gitr 00 phit, ngady 03/4/2025 14 hoan toan hop phap, hop 1€ va cé diy du diéu kién
tién hanh Pai hi theo quy dinh.
In accordance with the Law on Enterprises 2020, the Charter of organization and operation
of the Company, the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Hai Duong
Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock Company opening at 08:00 on April 3, 2025
is completely legal, valid and fully eligible fo proceed.

II. NOI DUNG VA TIEN TRiNH PAI HQI / CONTENT AND PROCESS OF THE MEETING
Dai hoi da tién hanh theo tién trinh nhu sau / The Meeting proceeded as follows:

1. Gi6i thiéu thanh phin tham dw Dai hdi / Infroduction of participants:

Hpi dong quan tri / Board of Directors:

- Ong Nguyén Trung Viét Chu tich Hbi dong quan tri
Mr. Nguyen Trung Viet Chairman

- Ong Tran Phiic Duong Thanh vién Hdi ddng quan tri
Mpr. Tran Phuc Duong Member of the board

- Ba Nguyén Thi Td Anh Thanh vién Hbi déng quan tri
Mrs. Nguyen Thi Tu Anh Member of the board

Ban Kiém sodt / Supervisory Board:

- Ba Pham Thi Thuy Trudng Ban kiém soat
Mrs. Pham Thi Thuy Head of the board

- Ong Trin Kim Cwong Thanh vién Ban kiém soét
Mr. Tran Kim Cuong Member of the board



- Ba Nguyén Thi Huong Lan Thanh vién kiém so4t
Myrs. Nguyen Thi Huong Lan Member of the board

Ban Diéu hanh / Board of Management:

- Ba Nguyén Thi T Anh Tdng Giam dbc

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Tu Anh General Manager

- Ong Chu Vin Long Ké toan truéng — Ngudi phu trach Quan tri Cong ty.

Myr. Chu Van Long Chief Accountant — Person in charge of Corporate
Governance.

2. Giéi thiéu Poan chi toa, Ban thw ky va Ban kiém phiéu/ Introduction of the Presidium,
Secretariat and Vote Counting Committee
Ong Nguyén Trung Viét - Chu tich HDQT - Chu toa Dai hoi gidi thiéu danh sach DPoan chi toa, Thu
ky Pai hoi va Ban kiém phiéu ctia Dai hoi:
Mr. Nguyen Trung Viet - Chairman of the Board of Directors - Chairman of the Meeting introduced
the list of the Presidium, Secretariat and the Vote Counting Committee:

a. Doan chi toa / Presidium:
—  Ong Nguyén Trung Viét — Chu tich HDQT — Chu toa

Mr. Nguyen Trung Viet — Chairman of the Board of Directors — Chairman of the presidium
—  BaNguyén Thi Ta Anh — Téng Gidm d6c — Thanh vién

Mers. Nguyen Thi Tu Anh — General Manager — Member
—  Ong Trén Phic Duong — Thanh vién HDQT — Thanh vién

Mr. Tran Phuc Duong — Member of Board of Directors — Member

b. Thu ky Pai hdi / Meeting Secretary:
pé giup viéc va ghi chép cac dién bién cua Pai hoi, Chu toa Dai hdi gidi thiéu Thu ky Pai hoi:
To assist and record the proceedings of the Meeting, the Chairman introduced the Meeting
Secretary:
—  Ba Trin Thi Dudng — Phong T6 chirc hanh chinh

Mers. Tran Thi Duong — Administrative Department

¢. Ban kiém phiéu / Vote Counting Committee:
Dé thyc hién cong tac kiém phiéu biéu quyét ctia Dai hoi, Chu toa Dai hdi gidi thiu danh sach nhén
su ctia Ban kiém phiéu nhu sau:
To carry out the vote counting for the Meeting, the Chairman introduced the list of personnel of the
Counting Committee as follows:

—  Nguyén Thi Huong Lan —~Truéng ban
Nguyen Thi Huong Lan - Head of Committee
— D5 Thi Mai Tudng — Thanh vién



Do Thi Mai Tuong - Member
—  Pham Thi Van —Thanh vién
Pham Thi Van - Member
— Pao Thi Thanh Thiy—Thanh vién
Dao Thi Thanh Thuy —Member
— Nguyén Thi Kim Thoa — Thanh vién
Nguyen Thi Kim Thoa —Member
—  Bui Thi Phuong Anh-Thanh vién
Bui Thi Phuong Anh —Member
—  Nguyén Thi Huong Giang —Thanh vién
Nguyen Thi Huong Giang —Member
—  Ding Thi Thiy Van —Thanh vién
Dang Thi Thuy Van —Member
—  Duong Kim Huong —Thanh vién
Duong Kim Huong —Member
— L& Thi Thu Hién ~Thanh vién
Le Thi Thu Hien —Member
3. Chwong trinh hop, Quy ché t6 chirc va biéu quyét, bau cir / Meeting agenda, rules of
organization, voting
a. Chwong trinh hop / Meeting agenda
B4 Nguy2n Thi Tt Anh — Téng Giadm ddc thay mt Ban t6 chirc Pai hdi doc Chuong trinh hop.
Mrs. Nguyen Thi Tu Anh - General Manager on behalf of the Organizing Committee read the

meeling agenda.
Chuong trinh hop Dai héi ddng cb dong thuong nién ndm 2025 bao gdm cac ndi dung sau:
The agenda of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders includes the followings:
Bao céo hoat dong san xuét kinh doanh nim 2024 va ké hoach nam 2025;
Report on production and business activities in 2024 and plan for 2025;
B4o c4o hoat dong cua Hdi dong quan tri nim 2024;
Report on the activities of the Board of Directors in 2024;
Béo céo hoat dong cua Ban Kiém so4t nim 2024;
Report on the activities of the Board of Supervisors in 2024;
Té trinh s6 01/Ttr — HDQT vé viéc thong qua Béo cdo hoat dong ctia HPQT, BKS nidm 2024;
Bdo céo hoat dong SX- KD nam 2024 va ké hoach SX — KD nam 2025;
Proposal No. 01/Ttr — HPQT on the approval of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board's
Operation Report in 2024; Production and Business Activity Report in 2024 and Production
and Business Plan in 2025;



Té trinh s6 02/Ttr — HDQT vé viée thong qua Bao céo tai chinh nim 2024 da dugc kiém toan;
Proposal No. 02/Ttr — HDQT on the approval of the audited 2024 Financial Statements;
- Té trinh s 03/Ttr — HPQT vé viéc thong qua Phuong 4n phan phdi loi nhuén ndm 2024 va du
to4n tai chinh nam 2025
Proposal No.03/TTr-HDQT on The 2024 profit distribution plan and 2025 financial budget
- Té& trinh sb 04/Ttr — HDQT vé viéc thong qua chi tra thu lao cho HDQT, BKS nim 2024 va
dé xuat nam 2025;
Proposal No. 04/Ttr — HPQT on approving remuneration payment for the Board of Directors
and Supervisory Board in 2024 and proposal for 2025;
Té trinh s& 05/Ttr — HDQT v& viée théng qua viée lua chon don vi kiém toan BCTC nam 2025;
Proposal No. 05/Ttr — HDQT on approving the selection of an audit unit for the 2025 financial
statements;
Té trinh sé 06/Ttr — HDQT phuong 4n phat hanh ¢b phiéu dé tang vén tir ngudn vén chii s& hiru
nam 2025;
Proposal No. 06/Ttr — HDQT on plan to issue shares to increase capital from equity in 2025,
T& trinh sé 07/Ttr — HDQT vé viéc thong qua dinh huéng phat trién ndm 2025 va nhimg nam
tiép theo;
Proposal No. 07/Ttr — HDQT on development plans for 2025 and following years;
Té trinh s6 08/Ttr — HPQT vé viéc huy ding ky giao dich tai chimg khodn tai san UpCom, Dang
ky niém yét chig khoén tai S& giao dich chimg khoan TP. H6 Chi Minh.
Proposal No. 08/Ttr — HDQT on canceling registration for securities trading at UpCom Sfloor,
Registration for securities listing at Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange.
b. Quy ché té chirc va biéu quyét / Rules on organization and voting
Ba Nguyén Thi T Anh — Téng Gidm déc thay m3t Ban t6 chirc Pai hdi doc Quy ché t6 chirc va
biéu quyét tai Pai hoi dong cd dong thuong nién nam 2025.
Mrs. Nguyen Thi Tu Anh - General Manager on behalf of the Organizing Committee of the Meeting
read the rules on organization and voting at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.
4. Dai hi tién hanh biéu quyét thong qua Doan chi toa, Ban kiém phiéu, Chwong trinh hop,
Quy ché td chirc va biéu quyét biang hinh thirc gio Thé biéu quyét | The Congress voted to
approve the Presidium, the Vote Counting Committee, the Meeting Agenda, the Organization and
Voting Rules by raising the Voting Card.
—  Pai hoi da nhét tri 100% thong qua cac ndi dung vé thanh vién Doan chii toa, Ban kiém phiéu,
Chuong trinh hop, Quy ché t6 chirc va bi€u quyét.
The Congress unanimously approved 100% of the contents regarding the members of the
Presidium, the Vote Counting Committee, the Meeting Agenda, the Organization and Voting
Rules
Duéi su diéu hanh ciia Poan chi toa, Dai hoi ddng cb dong thuong nién nam 2025 cua Cong ty
C6 phan Vit tu Y t€ Hai Duong tién hanh chuong trinh nghi su.



Under the direction of the Presidium, the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Hai
Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock Company proceeded with the agenda.

[II. CAC BAO CAO, TO TRINH TAI PAI HOI / REPORTS AND PROPOSALS AT THE
MEETING
1. Céc b4o cdo trinh bay tai Dai hi / Reports presented at the meeting

Ba Nguyén Thi Ta Anh — Téng Giam déc trinh bay Béo céo hoat ddng san xuét kinh doanh nim
2024 va ké hoach ndm 2025.

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Tu Anh - General Manager presented the 2024 production and business
activities report and the 2025 plan.

Ong Nguyén Trung Viét — Chii tich HDQT trinh bay Béo céo hoat dong ctia Hi dong quan tri
nam 2024.

Mr. Nguyen Trung Viet - Chairman of the Board of Directors presented the Board of Directors
2024 Operation Report.

Ba Pham Thi Thity — Truéng Ban kiém soét trinh bay Béo cdo hoat dong ciia Ban kiém soét
nam 2024.

Mprs. Pham Thi Thuy - Head of the Board of Supervisors presented the Board of Supervisors'
2024 Operation Report.

r

2. Céc to trinh trinh bay tai Dai hdi / Proposals presented at the meeting

Pai hdi da nghe Poan chii toa 1an lugt trinh bay céc t& trinh.

The Congress listened to the Presidium present the following reports:

T& trinh s6 01/Ttr — HDQT vé viéc théng qua B4o cdo hoat dong cia HDQT, BKS nam 2024;
Bé4o c4o hoat dong SX- KD nam 2024 va ké hoach SX — KD niam 2025;

Proposal No. 01/Ttr — HDQT on the approval of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board's
Operation Report in 2024; Production and Business Activity Report in 2024 and Production

and Business Plan in 2025;

Té trinh s6 02/Ttr — HDQT v2 viée thong qua Béo céo tai chinh nam 2024 da dugc kiém toan;
Proposal No. 02/Ttr — HDQT on the approval of the audited 2024 Financial Statements;

- Té& trinh s6 03/Ttr — HDQT vé viéc théng qua Phuong 4n phén phéi 1¢i nhuén nidm 2024 va du
toan tai chinh nam 2025

Proposal No.03/TTr-HDQT on The 2024 profit distribution plan and 2025 financial budget

_ Té& trinh s 04/Ttr — HDQT vé viéc thong qua chi tra thu lao cho HDQT, BKS nam 2024 va
d& xuét nam 2025;

Proposal No. 04/Ttr — HDQT on approving remuneration payment for the Board of Directors
and Supervisory Board in 2024 and proposal for 2025;

T& trinh s6 05/Ttr — HPQT vé viée théng qua viéc lua chon don vi kiém toan BCTC niam 2025;
Proposal No. 05/Ttr — HPQT on approving the selection of an audit unit for the 2025 financial
statements;

Té trinh sé 06/Ttr — HDQT phuong 4n phat hanh cd phiéu dé tang vén tir ngudn von chu sé hiru



nam 2025;
Proposal No. 06/Ttr — HDOT on plan to issue shares to increase capital from equity in 2025;
Tér trinh sé 07/Ttr — HDQT vé viéc théng qua dinh huéng phat trién ndm 2025 va nhiing nam
tiép theo;
Proposal No. 07/Ttr — HPQT on development plans for 2025 and following years;
Té& trinh s6 08/Ttr — HDQT vé viée hiy ding ky giao dich tai chimg khoén tai san UpCom, Déng
k¥ niém yét chimg khoén tai S& giao dich chimg khoan TP. Ho Chi Minh.
Proposal No. 08/Ttr — HDQT on canceling registration for securities trading at UpCom floor,
Registration for securities listing at Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange.
IV. THAO LUAN VA Y KIEN CUA CO PONG / SHAREHOLDER DISCUSSION AND
COMMENTS
—  Chii toa mdi c4c dai biéu tham du Pai hdi tham gia thao luén céc Béo cdo va T& trinh dugce
Poan chu toa trinh bay.
The Chairman invited delegates to discuss the Reports and Proposals presented by the
Presidium.
— b dong khong c6 cau hoi nao danh cho Poan Chi toa.

Shareholders had no questions for the Presidium.

V. BIEU QUYET CAC VAN PE THUQC THAM QUYEN CUA DAI HOI PONG CO PONG
/ VOTING ON MATTERS WITHIN THE JURISDICTION OF THE GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS
Sau khi nghe Ba Nguyén Thi Huong Lan - Truéng Ban kiém phiéu huéng dan Dai hoi biéu quyét,
Pai hoi da tién hanh biéu quyét bing hinh thitc bd phiéu kin.
After listening to Mrs. Nguyen Thi Huong Lan - Head of the Vote Counting Committee instructing
the Congress on voting, the Congress proceeded to vote by secret ballot.
Tai thoi diém: .... gid .... phit, sb Iuong dai bidu du hop 14: ... dai biéu, dai dién cho: ....c..ceue...
phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: .cceeeeeeeee. % tdng s6 phiéu biéu quyét cua tit ca cb déng cb quyén biéu
quyét.
At: ....... am, the number of delegates attending the meeting was: ..... delegates, representing:
......... votes, accounting for: ........% of the total votes of all shareholders with voting rights.
Trong d6 / In which:
— Téng sb t& phiéu phat ra: ....ccceeeee. dai ditt cho »cosoanmanne phiéu bidu quyét, chiém
100,0000% tinh trén tong s6 phiéu biéu quyét ciia cb déng du hop.
Total number of votes issued: ......... representing ........ votes, accounting for 100.0000%
of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

—  Téng sb t& phiéu thu V&: veeeennes dal diencho ......seeeeei phiéu biéu quyét, ol T %
tinh trén téng s6 phiéu bidu quyét ctia c6 dong du hop.
Total number of votes collected: ........ representing ........... votes, accounting for
............. % of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.



— Téng sb to phiéu khong thu VES seessis dai dién cho .......... phiéu biéu quyét, chiém
| TR % tinh trén tdng sb phiéu biéu quyét cia c¢b dong du hop.
Total number of votes not collected: ...... representing ..eeee... votes, accounting for
% of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

Két qua kiém phiéu biéu quyét cho timg ni dung nhw sau / The voting results for each content

are as follows:

e Noi dung 01: Thong qua Béo cdo hoat djng ciia Hoi dong quan tri nim 2024; Bdo cdo hoat
dong ciia Ban kiém soat nim 2024; Béo cdo hoat djng sén xuit kinh doanh nim 2024 va
ké hoach nim 2025 theo T¥ trinh s§ 01/Ttr-HPQT ciia Hji dong quén tri.

Content 01: Approval of the Board of Directors’ 2024 Operational Report; Board of
Supervisors' 2024 Operational Report; 2024 Business and Production Activity Report and
2025 Plan according to Proposal No. 01/Ttr-HDQT of the Board of Directors.

Tong sb to phidu hop 1é: ....... dai dith cho: ..eessseses phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ......... %
tinh trén tong s6 phiéu biéu quyét cia ¢ dong du hop, trong d6:
Total number of valid ballots: .......... Fepresenting. «ueeeeessns votes, accounting for: ........% of the

total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting, of which:
—  Tbng sb to phiéu tan thanh: ........ dai dién cho: .......... phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: .......... %
tinh trén téng sb phiéu biéu quyét cua cb déng du hop.

Total number of votes in favor: ....... Fepresenting: «o.eeeeee votes, accounting for: .......... %
of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

_  Téng s6 to phiéu khong tan thanh: 0 dai dién cho: 0 phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: 0,0000% tinh trén
tdng s phiéu biéu quyét ciia cd dong du hop.

Total number of votes against: 0 representing: 0 votes, accounting for: 0.0000% of the total
number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

—  Tbng sb t& phiéu khong c6 y kién: ...... dai dién cho: ....... phiéu bidu quyét, chiém: ...... %
tinh trén téng sé phiéu biéu quyét ctia c6 déng du hop.

Total number of ballots with no opinion: ...... representing: ...... votes, accounting for:
............ % of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

Téng sb to phiéu khong hop Ié: ..... dai dién cho: ......... phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ...... % tinh trén
tdng s phiéu biéu quyét cia cd déng du hop.

Total number of invalid ballots: ..... representing: .......... votes, accounting for: ...... % of the total
number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

Nhuwr viy, ni dung 01 di dwge thong qua voity I€ ........... %
As a result, content 01 was approved with a rate of .......... %-.

e Nji dung 02: Théng qua Bao cdo tai chinh nim 2024 da dwec kiém tosn theo T¢ trinh b
02/Ttr-HPQT ciia Hi ddng quan tri.
Content 02: Approval of the audited 2024 Financial Report according to Submission No.



02/Ttr-HDOT of the Board of Directors.

Téng sb to phiéu hop 1€: ....... dai dién cho: ..eeceeeee phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ......... %
tinh trén tong sb phiéu biéu quyét ciia ¢b dong du hop, trong do:
Total number of valid ballofts: .......... representing: .oeeeeseees votes, accounting for: ........% of the

total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting, of which:

—  Téng sb to phiéu tan thanh: ........ dul dién cho: cocwensnns phiéu bidu quyét, chiém: .......... %
tinh trén téng sb phiéu biéu quyét cia cd dong du hop.
Total number of votes in favor: ....... FepresSenting: ceeeeesens votes, accounting for: .......... %
of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

—  Téng sb to phiéu khong tén thanh: 0 dai dién cho: 0 phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: 0,0000% tinh trén
téng s6 phiéu biéu quyét ctia c6 dong du hop.
Total number of votes against: 0 representing: 0 votes, accounting for: 0.0000% of the total
number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

—  Téng sb to phiéu khéng c6 y kién: ...... dai dién cho: ....... phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ...... %
tinh trén téng s6 phiéu bidu quyét ctia c6 dong du hop.

Total number of ballots with no opinion: ...... representing: ...... votes, accounting for:
............ % of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.
Tong sb t& phiéu khong hop Ié: ..... dai dién cho: ......... phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ...... % tinh trén

tdng sb phiéu biéu quyét ciia c6 déng du hop.

Total number of invalid ballots: ..... representing: «..c.ee... votes, accounting for: ...... % of the total

number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

Nhur vy, ndi dung 02 da dwge thong qua véi ty 1€ ........... %.

As a result, content 02 was approved with a rate of ............ %-.

¢ Noi dung 03: Thong qua Phwong 4n phan phdi loi nhuin nim 2024 va dy toan tai chinh
nim 2025 theo T& trinh s 03/Ttr — HDQT ciia Hi dong quan tri

Content 03: Approval of the 2024 profit distribution plan and 2025 financial budget according
to Proposal No. 03/Ttr — HDQT of the Board of Directors

Téng s6 to phiéu hop 1é: ....... dai dién ¢ho: «cssrersne phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ......... %

tinh trén tong s6 phiéu biéu quyét ciia cb dong du hop, trong do:

Total number of valid ballots: .......... representing: veeeeeesees votes, accounting for: ........% of the

total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting, of which:

—  Tbng sb to phiéu tan thanh: ........ dai ditn cho; o phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: .......... %
tinh trén tdng sé phiéu biéu quyét cua cd dong du hop.
Total number of votes in favor: ....... representing: .......... votes, accounting for: .......... %
of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

—  Téng sb to phiéu khong tén thanh: 0 dai dién cho: 0 phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: 0,0000% tinh trén
tdng sb phiéu biéu quyét cia cb déng du hop.



Total number of votes against: 0 representing: 0 votes, accounting for: 0.0000% of the total
number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.
—  Tbng sb to phiéu khong c6 ¥ kién: ...... dai dién cho: ....... phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ...... %
tinh trén tdng sb phiéu bidu quyét ctia cb déng du hop.
Total number of ballots with no opinion: ...... representing: ...... votes, accounting for:
............ % of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.
Tdng sb to phiéu khong hop 1é: ..... dai dién cho: ......... phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ...... % tinh trén
tdng s6 phidu bidu quyét clia cd dong du hop.
Total number of invalid ballots: ..... representing: «......... votes, accounting for: ...... % of the total
number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.
Nhur vy, ndi dung 03 da dwoe thong qua véity 1€ ........... %.
As a result, content 03 was approved with a rate of ........... %.
e Nbi dung 04: Thong qua viéc chi tra thi lao cho HDQT, BKS niam 2024 va dé xuit nim
2025 theo Té trinh sb 04/Ttr-HPQT ciia Hoi dong quan tri.
Content 04: Approval of remuneration payment for the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors in 2024 and proposal for 2025 according to Proposal No. 04/Ttr-HDQT of the
Board of Directors.
Téng sb to phiéu hop 1é: ....... dai dign cho: .siseeivss phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: .........%
tinh trén téng s6 phiéu bidu quyét ctia c6 dong du hop, trong d6:
Total number of valid ballots: .......... Fepresenting: ceeeeeueens votes, accounting for: ....... % of the
total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting, of which:
—  Tbng sb to phiéu tan thanh: ........ dal dién cho? «usvosvans phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: .......... %o
tinh trén téng sé phiéu biéu quyét cia ¢ dong du hop.
Total number of votes in favor: ....... representing: .o.eeeeee votes, accounting for: ....e..... %
of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

—  Téng s to phiéu khong tan thanh: 0 dai dién cho: 0 phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: 0,0000% tinh trén
téng sb phiéu biéu quyét ciia cb déng du hop.

Total number of votes against: 0 representing: 0 votes, accounting for: 0.0000% of the total
number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

—  Tbng sb to phiéu khong c6 ¥ kién: ...... dai dién cho: ....... phiéu bidu quyét, chiém: ...... %
tinh trén tdng s6 phiéu biéu quyét cia ¢b dong dy hop.

Total number of ballots with no opinion: ...... representing: ...... votes, accounting for:
............ % of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

Téng sé t& phiéu khong hop 1¢: ..... dai dién cho: ......... phiéu biu quyét, chiém: ...... % tinh trén
tdng sb phiéu biéu quyét cua c¢b déng du hop.

Total number of invalid ballots: ..... representing: .......... votes, accounting for: ...... % of the total
number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.
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Nhur vy, ndi dung 04 d3 dwoc thong qua véity Ié ........ Y%

As a result, content 04 was approved with a rate of .......... %.

e Noi dung 05: Thong qua viéc lra chon don vi kiém toan BCTC nim 2024 theo T¥ trinh sfil
05/Ttr-HPQT ciia Hoi dong quan tri
Content 05: Approval of the selection of the 2024 Financial Statements Auditing Unit
according to Proposal No. 05/Ttr-HDQT of the Board of Directors

Téng sb to phiéu hop 1é: ....... dai dién cho: ....ee.... phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ......... %

tinh trén tdng s phiéu biéu quyét cia cb dong du hop, trong d6:

Total number of valid ballots: .......... representing: coveeeesens votes, accounting for: ........% of the

total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting, of which:

—  Tbng sb to phiéu tan thanh: ........ dai dién cho: .......... phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: .......... %
tinh trén tdng s phiéu biéu quyét ciia cb dong du hop.
Total number of votes in favor: ....... representing: .oeeeeeee. votes, accounting for: .......... %
of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

—  Téng sb to phibu khong tan thanh: 0 dai dién cho: 0 phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: 0,0000% tinh trén
tdng sb phiéu biéu quyét ciia ¢ déng du hop.
Total number of votes against: 0 representing: 0 votes, accounting for: 0.0000% of the total
number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

—  Tbng sb t& phiéu khong c6 ¥ kién: ...... dai dién cho: ....... phiéu bidu quyét, chiém: ...... %
tinh trén tdng sb phiéu biéu quyét cia c6 dong du hop.
Total number of ballots with no opinion: ...... representing: ...... votes, accounting for:
............ % of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

Téng sb t& phiéu khong hop 1é: ..... dai dién cho: ......... phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ...... % tinh trén
téng s6 phiéu biéu quyét ciia c6 dong du hop.

Total number of invalid ballots: ..... representing: ......... votes, accounting for: ...... % of the total
number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

Nhur vy, ndi dung 05 da dwge thong qua véity I€ .......... Y%

As a result, content 05 was approved with a rate of ......... %.

e Noi dung 06: Thong qua phwong 4n phat hanh cb phiéu dé ting vén tir nguon vén chi s&
hitu nim 2025 theo T& trinh s 06/Ttr-HPQT ciia Hdi dong quan tri.

Content 06: Approval of the plan to issue shares to increase capital from equity in 2025
according to Proposal No. 06/Ttr-HDQT of the Board of Directors.

Téng s6 to phiéu hop 1¢&: ....... ik ‘dign Tho warammuss phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ......... %
tinh trén téng sé phiéu biéu quyét cua c¢b dong du hop, trong do:

Total number of valid ballots: .......... Fepresenting. «o.eeeeees votes, accounting for: ........% of the
total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting, of which:

—  Tbng sb td phiéu tan thanh: ........ dm dign choT s eieenaiss phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: .......... %
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tinh trén tdng s phiéu biéu quyét ciia c6 déng du hop.
Total number of votes in favor: ....... represSenting: c.veeeeee votes, accounting for: .......... %
of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

_ Téng sb to phiéu khong tan thanh: 0 dai dién cho: 0 phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: 0,0000% tinh trén
téng s6 phiéu biéu quyét ciia cb dong du hop.
Total number of votes against: 0 representing: 0 votes, accounting for: 0.0000% of the total
number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

—  Tbng sb to phiéu khong co y kién: ...... dai dién cho: ....... phiéu bidu quyét, chiém: ...... %
tinh trén tdng sé phiéu biéu quyét ciia cd dong du hop.
Total number of ballots with no opinion: ...... representing: ...... votes, accounting for:
............ % of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

Téng sb t& phiéu khong hop 1é: ..... dai dién cho: ......... phiéu bidu quyét, chiém: ...... % tinh trén

tdng s6 phiéu bidu quyét ctia cd dong du hop.

Total number of invalid ballots: ..... representing: .......... votes, accounting for: ...... % of the total

number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

Nhwr vy, ndi dung 06 da dwgc thong qua véity I€ ......... %

As a result, content 06 was approved with a rate of .......... %.

e Néidung 07: Thong qua dinh hwong phat trién nam 2025 va nhimg nim tiép theo theo T&

trinh s8 07/Ttr-HPQT ciia Hji dong quan tri.
Content 07: Development plan for 2025 and following years to Proposal No. 07/Ttr-HPQOT of
the Board of Directors.

Téng sb to phiéu hop Ié: ....... dai dién cho: .ceeiseess phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ......... %

tinh trén tdng sb phiéu biéu quyét clia cb dong du hop, trong do:

Total number of valid ballots: .......... representing: .oeeeesens votes, accounting for: ........% of the

total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting, of which:

—  Tbng sb to phiéu tan thanh: ........ dai dién cho: .......... phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: .......... %
tinh trén téng sb phiéu biéu quyét ciia c6 dong du hop.

Total number of votes in favor: ....... representing: c.eeeeeess votes, accounting for: ....eee... %
of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

—  Tbng s to phiéu khéng tan thanh: 0 dai dién cho: 0 phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: 0,0000% tinh trén
tdng sb phiéu biu quyét ciia ¢ déng du hop. '
Total number of votes against: 0 representing: 0 votes, accounting for: 0.0000% of the total
number of voles of shareholders attending the meeting.

—  Tbng sb t& phiéu khéng c6 ¥ kién: ...... dai dién cho: ....... phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ...... %
tinh trén tdng sé phiéu biéu quyét cia cb dong du hop.
Total number of ballots with no opinion: ...... representing: ...... votes, accounting for:
............ % of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.
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Téng sb to phiéu khong hop 1é: ..... dai dién cho: ......... phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ...... % tinh trén
téng s6 phiéu bidu quyét ctia c6 dong du hop.
Total number of invalid ballots: ..... representing: .......... votes, accounting for: ...... % of the total

number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

Nhur vy, noi dung 07 da dwgce thong qua véity I€ ......... %

As a result, content 07 was approved with a rate of ........ %.

e Noi dung 8: Thong qua hily diing ky giao dich tai chimg khoén tai san UpCom, Ding ky
niém yét chimg kho4n tai S& giao dich chimg khodn TP. Ho Chi Minh theo T trinh 50
08/Ttr-HPQT ciia Hoi dong quan tri.

Content 8: Proposal to cancel the securities trading registration at UpCom floor; Registration
of securities listing at Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange to Proposal No. 08/Ttr-HDQOT of the

Board of Directors.

Tdng sb to phiéu hop 1é: ....... dai dién cho: .......... phiéu bidu quyét, chiém: ......... %
tinh trén tong s6 phiéu biéu quyét ctia cd dong du hop, trong do:
Total number of valid ballots: .......... FepPresenting: cevesseens votes, accounting for: ........% of the

total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting, of which:
—  Tbng sb to phiéu tan thanh: ........ dai dién cho: .eceeeeee. phiéu bidu quyét, chiém: .......... %
tinh trén tong s6 phiéu biéu quyét ctia c6 dong du hop.

Total number of votes in favor: ....... representing: «c.eeeeee votes, accounting for: .......... %
of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

—  Tbng sb t& phiéu khong tan thanh: 0 dai dién cho: 0 phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: 0,0000% tinh trén
tdng s6 phiéu biu quyét ctia cd dong du hop.
Total number of votes against: 0 representing: 0 votes, accounting for: 0.0000% of the total
number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

—  Tbng sb t& phiéu khéng c6 ¥ kién: ...... dai dién cho: ....... phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ...... %
tinh trén téng sé phiéu biéu quyét ciia cb déng du hop.
Total number of ballots with no opinion: ...... representing: ...... votes, accounting for:
............ % of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

Téng sb t& phiéu khong hop 1é: ..... dai dién cho: ......... phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ...... % tinh trén
téng s phiéu biéu quyét ciia c6 dong du hop.

Total number of invalid ballots: ..... representing: .......... votes, accounting for: ...... % of the total
number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

Téng s6 to phiéu hop 1&: ....... dai di€n cho: ..cecensss phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ......... Y%
tinh trén téng sb phiéu biéu quyét ciia cd ddng du hop, trong do:

Total number of valid ballots: .......... FEPreSenting: «.......... VOles, accounting for: ........% of the
total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting, of which:

—  Tbng sb t& phiéu tan thanh: ........ dal AIEn Cho? cernereses phiéu biéu quyét, ChECIS seopsand %
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tinh trén tdng sé phiéu bidu quyét ctia c¢6 dong du hop.

Total number of votes in favor: ....... Fepresenting: .oeeeesess votes, accounting for: .......... %
of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

—  Téngsb to phiéu khong tén thanh: 0 dai dién cho: 0 phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: 0,0000% tinh trén
téng sb phiéu biéu quyét ctia cb déng du hop.
Total number of votes against: 0 representing: 0 votes, accounting for: 0.0000% of the total
number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

—  Tbng sb t& phiéu khong c6 ¥ kién: ...... dai dién cho: ....... phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ...... %
tinh trén téng sb phiéu biéu quyét cia c6 dong du hop.
Total number of ballots with no opinion: ...... representing: ...... votes, accounting for:
% of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

Téng sb t& phiéu khong hop 1é: ..... dai dién cho: ......... phiéu bidu quyét, chiém: ...... % tinh trén
tdng s6 phiéu biéu quyét cua cb déng du hop.

Total number of invalid ballots: ..... representing: .......... votes, accounting for: ...... % of the total
number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

Téng sb to& phiéu hop 1€ ..eneen dai dién cho: .ceevecee. phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ......... %
tinh trén tdng sé phiéu biéu quyét cia cb dong du hop, trong do:
Total number of valid ballots: .......... representing: coveeeeeens votes, accounting for: ........% of the

total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting, of which:
—  Téng sb to phiéu tan thanh: ........ dai dién cho: ...cveeus phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: .......... %
tinh trén tng sb phiéu biéu quyét ciia c6 dong du hop.

Total number of votes in favor: ....... representing: .......... votes, accounting for: .......... %
of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

—  Téng s to phiéu khong tén thanh: 0 dai dién cho: 0 phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: 0,0000% tinh trén
tdng sé phiéu biéu quyét ciia cd dong du hop.

Total number of votes against: 0 representing: 0 votes, accounting for: 0.0000% of the total
number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

—  Téng sb to phiéu khong c6 ¥ kién: ...... dai dién cho: ....... phiéu biu quyét, chiém: ...... %
tinh trén tdng sb phiéu biéu quyét ctia c6 dong du hop.

Total number of ballots with no opinion: ...... representing: ...... votes, accounting for:
............ % of the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

Téng sb t& phiéu khong hop 1¢: ..... dai dién cho: ......... phiéu biéu quyét, chiém: ...... % tinh trén
téng sb phiéu biéu quyét ciia cb déng du hop.

Total number of invalid ballots: ..... representing. «......... votes, accounting for: ...... % of the total
number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting.

Nhur viy, néi dung 08 da dwge thong qua véi ty 1€ ..... %
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As a result, content 08 was approved with a rate of ....... %-.

VI. THU TUC BE MAC PAI HQI / CLOSING PROCEDURES

Ba Trin Thi Dudng — Thu ky Dai hoi doc toan van du thao Bién ban hop va Nghi quyét DHDCD
thuong nién nam 2025 cho toan thé ¢6 déng du hop cing nghe.

Mrs. Tran Thi Duong - Secretary of the General Meeting read the full text of the draft Minutes
and Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for all shareholders
attending the meeting to listen fo.

Pai héi tién hanh biéu quyét théng qua Bién ban hop va Nghi quyét PHDCP thudng nién ndm
2025 bang hinh thirc gio Thé biéu quyét.

The Congress voted to approve the Minutes and Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders by raising Voting Cards.

Dai hoi da nhat tri 100% théng qua toan vin Bién ban hop va Nghi quyét PHDCD thuong nién
nam 2025.

The Congress unanimously approved the full text of the Minutes and Resolution of the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

Ong Nguyén Trung Viét — Chi toa tuyén bb bé mac Dai hoi.

M. Nguyen Trung Viet - Chairman declared the closing of the General Meeting.
Pai hoi két thic vao hdi ... gio ... phit cing ngay ./.

The meeting ended at ..... on the same day./.

THU KY CHU TOA
SECRETARY CHAIRMAN
TRAN THI DUONG NGUYEN TRUNG VIET
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CONG TY CO PHAN CONG HOA XA HQI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM

DUQC VAT TU Y TE HAI DUONG SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
HAI DUONG PHARMACEUTICAL Pjc lap — Tw do — Hanh phic
MEDICAL MATERIALS JSC. Independence — Liberty — Happiness
Sé: ....../2025/NQ-PHPCP-DHD Hai Duong, ngay 03 thdng 4 nam 2025

s .;"025!’1\1 Q—HBCB—DHD Hai Duong, April 03, 2025

NGHI QUYET
PAI HOI PONG CO PONG THUONG NIEN NAM 2025
CONG TY CO PHAN DUQC VAT TU Y TE HAI DUONG

RESOLUTION
2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
HAI DUONG PHARMACEUTICAL MEDICAL MATERIALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Can cit / In accordance with:
- Ludt doanh nghiép sé 59/2020/QH14 ngay 17/06/2020, sira déi béi Ludt s6 03/2022/QHI5
ngay 11/01/2022;
Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020, amended by Law No.
03/2022/QH15 dated January 11, 2022;
_ Diéulé 16 chirc va hoat déng ciia Céng ty Co phan Duoc Vit tw' Y té Hai Duong;

Charter on organization and operation of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials
Joint Stock Company;

- Bién ban hop Pai hdi dong c6 dong thuong nién nam 2025 56 ..../2025/BB-DHDCD-DHD
ngay 03/04/2025 cia Cong ty Co phan Duogc Vit tu Y té Hai Duwong.
Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. ..../2025/BB-DHCD-DHD
dated April 3, 2025 of Hai Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock Company.

QUYET NGHI
RESOLUTION

Pidu 1. Thong qua cac Béo céo trinh Pai hoi theo To trinh s6 01/Ttr-HPQT ctia Hi dong quan tri,
cu thé nhu sau:
Article 1. Approval of the Reports submitted to the Congress according to Proposal No. 01/Ttr-
HDOQOT of the Board of Directors, specifically as follows:
- Baéo c4do hoat dong cua Hoi d("‘)rlg quan tri nam 2024;
Report on the activities of the Board of Directors in 2024;
- Béo cdo hoat dong cua Ban kiém soat nam 2024;
Report on the activities of the Board of Supervisors in 2024;
- Baéo céo hoat dong san xuét kinh doanh nam 2024 va ké hoach nam 2025.
Report on production and business activities in 2024 and plan for 2025.



Pidu 2. Thong qua Bao cdo tai chinh nam 2024 da dugc kiém toén theo T& trinh s6 02/Ttr-HDQT

ctia Hoi déng quan tri.

Article 2. Approval of the audited 2024 Financial Report according to Proposal No. 02/Ttr-HDQT
of the Board of Directors.

Pidu 3. Thong qua Phuong an phén phdi loi nhusn nam 2024 va du toan tai chinh ndm 2025 theo

Té& trinh s8 03/Ttr-HDQT cia Hbi déng quan tri.

Article 3. Approve the 2024 profit distribution plan and 2025 financial budget according to Proposal
No. 03/Ttr-HDPQT of the Board of Directors.

Pidu 4. Thong qua viéc chi tra thi lao cho HDQT, BKS nim 2024 va d& xudt ndm 2025 theo T
trinh s8 04/Ttr-HPQT ctia Hoi dong quan tri.

Article 4. Approval of remuneration payment for the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors in 2024 and the proposal for 2025 according to Proposal No. 04/Ttr-HDQT of the Board
of Directors.

Piéu 5. Thong qua viéc lua chon don vi kiém to4an BCTC nim 2025 theo T& trinh s6 05/Ttr-HPQT
ctia Hoi ddng quan tri

Article 5. Approval of the selection of the 2025 Financial Statements Auditing Unit according to

Proposal No. 05/Ttr-HPQOT of the Board of Directors

Pidu 6. Thong qua phuong 4n phat hanh c6 phiéu dé ting v6n tir ngudn vén chi s& hitu nadm 2025

theo T& trinh s6 06/Ttr-HPQT ctia Hoi déng quén tri.

Article 6. Approval of the plan to issue shares to increase capital from equity in 2025 according to

Proposal No. 06/Ttr-HPQT of the Board of Directors.

Pidu 7. Thong qua dinh huéng phét trién nam 2025 va nhimg nam tiép theo theo T& trinh s6 07/Ttr-

HDPQT cua Hbi ddng quan tri.

Article 7: Development plan for 2025 and following years to Proposal No. 07/Ttr-HDQT of the

Board of Directors.

Piéu 8. Thong qua huty déng ky giao dich tai chimg khoén tai sin UpCom, Dang k¥ niém yét chimg

khoén tai S& giao dich chiing khoén TP. H Chi Minh theo T trinh s6 08/Ttr-HPQT ctia Hi dong
quan tri.

Article 8: Proposal to cancel the securities trading registration at UpCom floor; Registration of
securities listing at Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange to Proposal No. 08/Ttr-HDQT of the Board
of Directors.

Nghi quyét duge DPHDCP thudng nién nam 2025 cia Cong ty Cb phan Dugc Vat tu Y té Hai Duong

thong qua toan van ngay tai cudc hop. Hoi df‘mg quan tri, Ban kiém soat, Ban Gidm dbc va cac phong
ban lién quan c¢ trach nhiém thi hanh nghi quyét nay.

The Resolution was approved in full by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Hai

Duong Pharmaceutical Medical Materials Joint Stock Company. The Board of Directors, the Board
of Supervisors, the Board of Management and relevant departments are responsible for

implementing this Resolution.

Nghi quyét ndy ¢6 higu luc ké tir ngay ky./.



This Resolution takes effect from the date of signing./.

Noi nhn / Recipients: TM. DAI HOI PONG CO PONG NAM 2025
- Quy ¢6 dong; . -
Shareholders CHU TOA PAI HOI
~HDOT, BRS, BGE, Thu'ky'Cong v; ON BEHALF OF THE 2025 GENERAL
Board of Directors, Supervisor, Management MEETING
and Company Secretary
- Luu VT. CHAIRMAN
Archives
NGUYEN TRUNG VIET
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